
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, February 21, 2018 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 2  

 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
3) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on 

January 17, 2017 –  
APPROVE 
 

4) Proposed Report of Independent Auditors from Moss-Adams LLP, an independent 
contractor, regarding the audit of Kern Medical Center financial statements for the year 
ending June 30, 2017 – 
RECEIVE AND FILE; REFER TO KERN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
5) Proposed update regarding the California section 1115 Medi-Cal 2020 Demonstration 

Waiver specific to the Kern Medical Center Whole Person Care Pilot program –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA 
6) Proposed 2017 Achievement Award from state of California Health and Human 

Services Agency for meeting or exceeding the Healthy People 2020 target for low-risk, 
first-birth cesarean deliveries –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

CA 
7) Proposed 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and 2017 Actuarial Valuation 

from Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
  
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 3  

 

 
CA  

8) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 10 to Agreement 042-2015 with Cantu 

Management Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for Chief Financial Officer and 
healthcare financial management services, revising the methodology for the monthly 
staffing fee for additional staff from hourly rates plus 44% to hourly rates plus a 
percentage of costs (benefits and expenses) not to exceed 44%, and increasing the 
maximum payable by $7,500,000, from $30,038,240 to $37,538,240, effective January 
1, 2018 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
9) Proposed retroactive Amended and Restated Membership Agreement with California 

Perinatal Quality Care Collaborative (CPQCC), an independent contractor, containing 
nonstandard terms and conditions, for statewide reporting and collection of hospital-
level performance data on California maternal and neonatal care from December 1, 
2017 through November 20, 2020, in an amount not to exceed $30,000 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN 
 
CA 
10) Proposed Agreement with Arturo Gomez, M.D., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Surgery, Division of Orthopedic Surgery from 
March 16, 2018 through March 15, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $3,690,000 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 

CA 
11) Proposed retroactive Statement of Commitment to Graduate Medical Education in 

support of residency and fellowship training programs sponsored by Kern Medical 
Center, as required by Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education, effective 
July 1, 2016 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
12) Proposed retroactive Change Order No. 1 to Agreement 077-2017 with James E. 

Thompson, Inc., doing business as JTS Construction, an independent contractor, for 
construction management services related to the NOC IT hub project at Sagebrush 
Medical Plaza, increasing the maximum payable by $3,756, from $717,500 to 
$721,256, to cover the cost of additional services –  

 MAKE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVE; 
AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 
APPROVE ANY FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
10% OF THE TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE OR $789,250 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 4  

 

 
CA 
13) Proposed retroactive Agreement with MedHub, LLC, an independent contractor, 

containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of E*Value software license 
and maintenance to support graduate medical education from November 10, 2017 
through November 9, 2020, in an amount not to exceed $250,000 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER TO SIGN SALES ORDERS TOTALING AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$250,000 

 
CA 
14) Proposed Agreement with Siemens Healthcare Diagnostics Inc., an independent 

contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for the acquisition of three 
chemistry analyzers and purchase of equipment service and support, reagents, 
consumables, and supplies from March 1, 2018 through February 28, 2025, in an 
amount not to exceed $2,826,913 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN  
 
CA 
15) Proposed Agreement with Hitachi Capital America Corp., an independent contractor, 

containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for capital lease with option to purchase 
three chemistry analyzers from Siemens Healthcare Diagnostics Inc., an independent 
contractor, for a term of 60 months commencing upon receipt of equipment, in an 
amount not to exceed $534,332 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER TO SIGN SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
CA 
16) Proposed Agreement with Charter Communications Operating, LLC on behalf of its 

operating subsidiary Spectrum, an independent contractor, containing nonstandard 
terms and conditions, for purchase of cable TV, phone, internet and related services, 
effective February 21, 2018 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; AUTHORIZE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER TO SIGN SERVICE ORDERS EACH TOTALING AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $250,000 

 
CA 
17) Proposed retroactive Resolution revising the authority of Counsel to contract for expert 

legal services for claims and litigation management, effective January 1, 2018 –  
 APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION 
 
18) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 

19) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 5  

 

 
CA 
20) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of January 31, 2018 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
21) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –  
 
22) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: One (1) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice 
of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an 
accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation 
against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs – 

 
23) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – 
 
24) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (Government Code 
Section 54957.6) – 

 
25) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Hadie Vanessa Alvarez v. 
County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-15-101754 TSC – 

 
26) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service Employees 
International Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment Relations 
Board, Case No. LA-CE-1084-M –  
 

27) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Brandy Hernandez aka 
Brandy Desrocher, an individual v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, 
Case No. BCV-17-102820 SDS – 

 
28) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 

(Government Code Section 54957) – 
 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 6  

 

 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 7  

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the 
posting of the agenda.  Any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an 
open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to 
the meeting will also be available for review at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 

The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, 
or by calling (661) 326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals 
with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for 
assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 8  

 

20) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF JANUARY 31, 2018 – 
RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Second Amended Complaint for Personal Injury in the matter of Raul Jason Gomez v. 
Kern Medical Center, Kern County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-16-102903 SDS 

B) Claim in the matter of Sindy Gutierrez v. Kern County Hospital Authority 
C) Claim in the matter of Ana D. Rivera v. Kern County Hospital Authority 
D) Claim in the matter of Anthony Troy Sprouse v. Kern County Hospital Authority 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, January 17, 2018 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Directors present: Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz 
 
Directors absent: Sistrunk 
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Lawson-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Lawson made the motion and Vice Chair McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
NON-AGENDA ITEM 
 
MOTION TO CONSIDER NON-AGENDA ITEM NO. 23:  MADE FINDING THAT THE NEED 
TO TAKE ACTION ON NON-AGENDA MATTER OCCURRED AFTER THE AGENDA WAS 
POSTED ON JANUARY 12, 2018. ON JANUARY 16, 2018, THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL 
AUTHORITY RECEIVED AN UPDATE REGARDING AN ONGOING PERSONNEL MATTER 
THAT REQUIRES THE IMMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS.  
McLaughlin-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                          
  1.17.18 
 
 

Page | 2  
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 
 
NO ONE HEARD 

 
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 
NO ONE HEARD 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing Michael J. Eagan, M.D. –  
MADE PRESENTATION    

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on 

December 13, 2017 –  
APPROVED 
Pelz-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 

5) Proposed presentation regarding Kern Medical sexual harassment policies and 
employee education –  
MADE PRESENTATION; RECEIVED AND FILED 
Berjis-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 

 
CA 
6) Proposed Agreement with Matthew M. Malerich, M.D., Incorporated, an independent 

contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of Surgery from April 9, 
2018 through April 8, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $2,700,000 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 001-2018 
Pelz-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                          
  1.17.18 
 
 

Page | 3  
 

 
CA 
7) Proposed Agreement with Desert Hand and Plastic Surgery PC, an independent 

contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of Surgery from April 9, 
2018 through April 8, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $2,700,000 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 002-2018 
Pelz-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 

CA  
8) Proposed Agreement with Medtronic USA, Inc., an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for the consigned purchase of Protégé carotid stent 
systems, effective January 17, 2018, in an annual amount estimated not to exceed 
$52,320 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 003-2018 
Pelz-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 

 
CA 
9) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 210-2016 with the County of 

Kern for employee benefit services, extending the provision of services, effective July 
1, 2016 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 004-2018 
Pelz-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 

 
CA 
10) Proposed retroactive Resolution specifying the powers and duties of the Kern County 

Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer, effective July 1, 2016 – 
APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2018-001 
Pelz-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 

CA 
11) Proposed Agreement with HireRight, LLC, an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for background screening products and services 
from January 17, 2018 through January 16, 2021, in an amount estimated not to exceed 
$75,000 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 005-2018 
Pelz-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 

 
CA 
12) Proposed acceptance of donation from CSAC EIA for travel and related expenses to 

cover all costs for one or more Kern Medical employees to attend the Division of 
Workers’ Compensation “25th Annual DWC Educational Conference” in Los Angeles, 
California, from February 12-13, 2018 –  

 APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2018-002 
Pelz-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                          
  1.17.18 
 
 

Page | 4  
 

 
13) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Rose Bauer, as 

Extra Help Clinical Pharmacist, for the period ending June 30, 2018, or 960 hours, 
whichever occurs first, effective January 20, 2018 – 

 APPROVED   
Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 

 
14) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
McLaughlin-Berjis: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 

15) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
RECEIVE AND FILE 
Pelz-Lawson: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 

CA 
16) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of December 31, 2017 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
Pelz-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Sistrunk 
 
 

ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
McGauley-McLaughlin 
 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
17) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
18) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 
19) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (Government Code 
Section 54957.6) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
20) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Farzin Tayefeh, M.D., et al. 
v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-15-100647 LHB 
– SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                          
  1.17.18 
 
 

Page | 5  
 

 
21) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Kern Emergency Physicians 
Medical Group, a California general partnership v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County 
Superior Court, Case No. S-1500-CV-283225 LHB – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 

22) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Brandy Hernandez aka 
Brandy Desrocher, an individual v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, 
Case No. BCV-17-102820 SDS – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 

23) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE (Government Code Section 
54957(b)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
McLaughlin-Berjis 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 17 concerning a Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 18 concerning REQUEST FOR CLOSED SESSION regarding peer review 
of health facilities (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 19 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency 

designated representatives: Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated 
staff - Employee organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 20 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 

LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Farzin Tayefeh, 
M.D., et al. v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-15-
100647 LHB – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 

 Item No. 21 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Kern 
Emergency Physicians Medical Group, a California general partnership v. County of 
Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, Case No. S-1500-CV-283225 LHB – HEARD; 
NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 

  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                                                          
  1.17.18 
 
 

Page | 6  
 

Item No. 22 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Brandy 
Hernandez aka Brandy Desrocher, an individual v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County 
Superior Court, Case No. BCV-17-102820 SDS – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE 
ACTION TAKEN 

 
Item No. 23 concerning PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
(Government Code Section 54957(b)) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 

 
ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 
McGauley 
 
 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
 Kern County Hospital Authority 



 
 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed Report of Independent Auditors from Moss‐Adams, LLP 
 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File; Refer to Kern County Board of Supervisors 
 

Summary: 
 

Kern Medical  requests  your  Board  receive  and  file  the  Report  of  Independent Auditors  from 
Moss‐Adams, LLP, for the audit of Kern Medical’s financial statements pursuant to Kern County 
Agreement No. 584‐2015. The scope of  the audit  includes the audit of Kern Medical  financial 
statements, which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2017, and the related 
statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.  
 
 

 



2017 Audit Results:
Kern County Hospital Authority

February 21, 2018



2

Kern County Hospital Authority

Board of Governors Dear Board of Governors:

Thank you for your continued engagement of Moss 
Adams LLP. We are pleased to have the opportunity to 
meet with you to discuss the results of our audit of the 
financial statements of Kern County Hospital Authority 
(“Kern Medical”) for the year ended June 30, 2017.

The accompanying report, which is intended solely for 
the use of the Board of Governors and management, 
presents important information regarding the Kern 
County Hospital Authority financial statements and our 
audit that we believe will be of interest to you. It is not 
intended and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

We conducted our audit with the objectivity and 
independence that you expect. We receive the full 
support and assistance of the Kern County Hospital 
Authority personnel. We are pleased to serve and be 
associated with the Kern County Hospital Authority as 
its independent public accountants and look forward to 
our continued relationship. 

We look forward to discussing our report or any other 
matters of interest with you during this meeting. 



3

• Auditor Opinion and Reports

• Communication with Those Charged 
with Governance

• Exhibit: Management Representation 
Letter 

• Other Information 

Agenda



Better Together: Moss Adams & Kern County Hospital Authority

Auditor Opinion & Reports



5

We have performed the following services for Kern Medical:

• Annual financial statement audit for the year ending June 30, 2017

Scope of Services

We have also performed the following non-attest services:

• Assisted in the drafting of the financial statements of Kern Medical



6

Unmodified Opinion

• Financial statements are presented fairly and in accordance 
with US GAAP

Auditor Report on the Financial 
Statements 



7

GAGAS Report on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters 

Other Auditor Reports 

• Material weaknesses – None noted.

• Significant deficiencies: 

• Finding 2017-01 Journal Entry Process

• Finding 2017-02 Timely Reconciliation of General 
Ledger Accounts

• Finding 2017-03 Bank Account Reconciliation

• Finding 2017-04 Purchasing and Disbursements Control 
Activities



Better Together: Moss Adams & Kern County Hospital Authority

Communication with Those Charged 
with Governance



9

To express our opinion 
on whether the financial 
statements prepared by 
management with your 
oversight are fairly 
presented, in all 
material respects, and 
in accordance with U.S. 
GAAP. However, our 
audit does not relieve 
you or management of 
your responsibilities. 

1

Our responsibility under US Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Our Responsibility 

To perform an audit in 
accordance with generally 
accepted auditing 
standards issued by the 
AICPA, Government 
Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General 
of the United States, and 
the California (CA) Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, 
Section 1131.2 and design 
the audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than 
absolute, assurance about 
whether the financial 
statements are free of 
material misstatement.

2
To consider internal 
control over financial 
reporting and internal 
control over 
compliance as a basis 
for designing audit 
procedures but not for 
the purpose of 
expressing an opinion 
on its effectiveness or 
to provide assurance 
concerning such 
internal control. 

3
To communicate 
findings that, in our 
judgment, are relevant 
to your responsibilities 
in overseeing the 
financial reporting. 
However, we are not 
required to design 
procedures for the 
purpose of identifying 
other matters to 
communicate to you.

4



10

OUR COMMENTS 
• The planned scope and timing of the audit was 

communicated to Kern Medical’s Board of 
Governors at the audit entrance meeting and was 
included in the engagement letter for the year 
ended June 30, 2017.

Planned Scope & Timing of the Audit 

It is the auditor’s responsibility to 
determine the overall audit strategy 
and the audit plan, including the 
nature, timing and extent of 
procedures necessary to obtain 
sufficient and appropriate audit 
evidence and to communicate with 
those charged with governance and 
overview of the planned scope and 
timing of the audit. 



11

OUR COMMENTS 
• Management has the responsibility for selection 

and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by the Kern 
Medical are described in the footnotes to the 
financial statements. Throughout the course of an 
audit, we review changes, if any, to significant 
accounting policies or their application, and the 
initial selection and implementation of new 
policies. There were no changes to significant 
accounting policies for the year ended June 30, 
2017.

• We believe management has selected and 
applied significant accounting policies 
appropriately and consistent with those of the 
prior year. 

Significant Accounting Policies & Unusual Transactions 

The auditor should determine that 
the Board of Governors is informed 
about the initial selection of and 
changes in significant accounting 
policies or their application. The 
auditor should also determine that 
the Board of Governors is informed 
about the methods used to account 
for significant unusual transactions 
and the effect of significant 
accounting policies in controversial 
or emerging areas for which there is 
a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. 



12

• Transfer of Operations – New Hospital Authority

• Patient Revenue/Receivables

• Valuation of Third Party Settlements

• Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits 
Obligations

• Self-Insured Risks – Professional Liability and 
Workers Compensation 

• Related Party Transactions

Areas of Audit Emphasis



13

COMMUNICATION WITH GOVERNING BODY

Areas of Audit Emphasis: Patient Service Revenue and 
Accounts Receivable Allowances
o Accounting Issue

• Revenue recognition and adequacy of contractual allowances and allowances for bad debts

o Description of circumstance
• Revenue recognized when service provided

• Receivables, primarily arising from third party payors

o Audit risk
• Revenue recognition could be inappropriate

• Reserve for contractual allowances are understated

o Moss Adams audit response
• Testing of internal controls around the revenue process

• Testing of management’s estimate of allowances using underlying collection history

• Lookback analysis and subsequent cash receipts analysis

o Moss Adams audit results
• Revenue recognition is considered appropriate

• Valuation of patient accounts receivable is appropriate

• Refer to next slide for hindsight analysis



14

COMMUNICATION WITH GOVERNING BODY

Patient Accounts Receivable Lookback Analysis

2016 2015 2014

Net Patient Accounts 
Receivable

$27,033,032 $29,757,971 $31,864,945

Subsequent Cash Receipts $30,103,626 $29,263,404 $35,670,341

Cash Receipts in Excess of 
(Less Than) Amounts 

Recorded
$3,070,594 ($494,567) $3,805,396

Cash Receipts in Excess of 
(Less Than) Amounts 

Recorded (%)
11% -2% 12%

Days in Patient Accounts 
Receivable

54 69 97



15

COMMUNICATION WITH GOVERNING BODY 

Areas of Audit Emphasis: Valuation of Third Party 
Settlements

o Accounting Issue
• Revenue recognition and adequacy of reserves

o Description of circumstance
• Revenue recognized in accordance with the elements of the respective reimbursement program

• Receivables or payables, arising from expected settlements with third party payors

o Audit risk
• Revenue recognition could be inappropriate

• Reserves are understated

o Moss Adams audit response
• Testing of internal controls around the revenue process

• Testing of management’s estimate of reserves based on contractual reimbursement arrangements, 

historical settlements, latest available information from payors

• Lookback analysis and subsequent cash receipts analysis

o Moss Adams audit results
• Revenue recognition is considered appropriate based on available information

• Valuation of third party settlements is appropriate



16

OUR COMMENTS 
• Management’s judgements and accounting estimates are 

based on knowledge and experience about past and 
current events and assumptions about future events. We 
apply audit procedures to management’s estimates to 
ascertain whether the estimates are reasonable under 
the circumstances and do not materially misstate the 
financial statements. 

• Significant management estimates impacted the financial 
statements including the following: accounts receivable 
reserves; actuarially determined accruals for 
workers’ compensation, professional liability, 
pension and other post-employment liabilities; and 
accruals for third party settlements.

• We deem them to be reasonable.

Management Judgements & Accounting Estimates 

The Board of Governors should be 
informed about the process used by 
management in formulating 
particularly sensitive accounting 
estimates and about the basics for 
the auditor’s conclusions regarding 
the reasonableness of those 
estimates. 



17

OUR COMMENTS 
• The disclosures in the financial statements are 

clear and consistent. Certain financial statement 
disclosures are particularly sensitive because of 
their significance to financial statements users.
We call your attention to the following note: 

Management Judgements & Accounting Estimates 

Our views about the quantitative 
aspects of the entity’s significant 
accounting policies, accounting 
estimates, and financial statement 
disclosures. 

• Note 1 – Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity -
Disclosure on transfer of operations and related 
adjustments 

• $38M decrease in pension liability beginning balance 
resulting from prior year Kern County allocation error

• $7.8M increase in workers’ compensation liability 
beginning balance resulting from the change of 
responsibility from Kern County to Kern Medical   



18

OUR COMMENTS 
The following post closing adjustments were recorded: 

Significant Audit Adjustments & Unadjusted Differences 
Considered by Management to Be Immaterial 

The Board of Governors should be informed of 
all significant audit adjustments arising from the 
audit. Consideration should be given to whether 
an adjustment is indicative of a significant 
deficiency or a material weakness in the Kern 
Medical’s internal control over financial 
reporting, or in its process for reporting interim 
financial information, that could cause future 
financial statements to be materially misstated.

The Board of Governors should also be informed 
of uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and pertaining to 
the latest period presented that were determined 
by management to be immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial 
statements as a whole.

• An adjustment of $4,500,000 to decrease Net Patient 
Accounts Receivable and Net Patient Service Revenue 
based on subsequent collections

• An adjustment of $2,800,000 to increase Professional 
Liability and Expenses based on actuarial analysis

• An adjustment of $3,000,000 to increase Due to 
Governmental Agencies and decrease Indigent Patient 
Care Funding based on subsequent activity for 
intergovernmental transfers

• An adjustment of $7,800,000 to increase Workers’ 
Compensation Liability and Unrestricted Net Position 
resulting from the change of responsibility from Kern 
County to Kern Medical 

There were no uncorrected adjustments. 



19

OUR COMMENTS 
• Kern Medical is subject to potential legal 

proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary 
course of business, which are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements. 

Potential Effect on the  Financial Statements of Any 
Significant Risks & Exposures 

The Board of Governors should be 
adequately informed of the potential 
effect on financial statements of 
significant risks and exposures and 
uncertainties that are disclosed in the 
financial statements.



20

OUR COMMENTS 
• No significant difficulties were encountered during 

our audit. 

• We are pleased to report that there were no 
disagreements with management.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

The Board of Governors should be 
informed of any significant difficulties 
encountered in dealing with 
management related to the 
performance of the audit, including 
disagreements with management, 
whether or not satisfactorily resolved, 
about matters that individually or in 
the aggregate could be significant to 
Kern Medical’s  financial statements, 
or the auditor’s report.



21

OUR COMMENTS 
• No such matters came to our attention. 

• We have not become aware of any instances 
of fraud or noncompliance with laws and 
regulations. 

Material Uncertainties Related to Events & Conditions/ 
Fraud & Noncompliance with Laws and Regulations 

Any doubt regarding the entity’s ability to 
continue, as a going concern, should be 
communicated to the Board of Governors.
Fraud involving senior management and 
fraud (whether caused by senior 
management or other employees) that 
causes a material misstatement of the 
financial statements should be 
communicated.  We are also required to 
communicate any noncompliance with laws 
and regulations involving senior 
management that come to our attention, 
unless clearly inconsequential.



22

OUR COMMENTS 
• See Exhibit 1 for management representation 

letter. 

• Other than the engagement letter, management 
representation letter, and communication to those 
charged with governance, there have been no 
other significant communications.  

Other Material Written Communications 

The Board of Governors should be 
informed of any significant difficulties 
encountered in dealing with 
management related to the 
performance of the audit, including 
disagreements with management, 
whether or not satisfactorily resolved, 
about matters that individually or in 
the aggregate could be significant to 
the Kern Medical’s  financial 
statements, or the auditor’s report.



23

OUR COMMENTS 
• We are not aware of any significant accounting or 

auditing matters for which management consulted 
other accountants. 

Management’s Consultation with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may 
decide to consult about auditing and 
accounting matters.  If management 
has consulted with other accountants 
about an auditing and accounting 
matter that involves application of an 
accounting principle to the Hospital’s 
financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor's 
opinion that may be expressed on 
those statements, our professional 
standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all 
the relevant facts.



Exhibit 1

Management Representation Letter 















Better Together: Moss Adams & Kern County Hospital Authority

Industry Focus



26

Crater Lake—
A monument to perseverance, North America’s 
deepest lake filled to 1,949 feet over 720 years.

Our Expertise

104
years in 
business

2,900+
professionals

30+
industries 
served

Data as of November 2017

Grand Canyon—
At 277 miles long and up to 18 miles 
wide, this icon serves as a testament 
to determination and time.

Our Reach

25+
locations 

west of the Mississippi

100+
countries served 

through Praxity, AISBL

$527M
in revenue 
earned

Data as of November 2017



27

Health Care Industry Experience

Our health care professionals dedicate their careers 
to serving the industry. 

We cover the full spectrum of health care including: 

• Hospitals and heath systems

• Independent practice associations 

• Medical groups

• Community health centers

• Behavioral health organizations 

• Long-term care

• Surgery centers

• Knox Keene licensed health plans

• Health care ancillary services
Crater Lake—
A monument to perseverance, North 
America’s deepest lake filled to 1,949 feet over 
720 years.

270+
professionals

32
practice partners

2,200+
clients across the nation

Data as of November 2017



28

Hospital and Health Systems

Moss Adams serves more than 200 hospitals and health 
systems, ranging in size from 15 to over 1,000 beds. We offer 
tailored solutions and health care consulting services to our 
for-profit, government, and not-for-profit entities. Our 
clients include:

• Integrated health systems

• University-based hospitals 

• Tertiary-care teaching hospitals

• Community and sole community hospitals

• District hospitals

• Critical access hospitals

• Pediatric hospitals



29

Audit and tax are vital. 
But you may have needs 
that go beyond these 
core functions. Our 
dedicated health care 
consulting team 
provides a range of 
services to address all 
your needs—both now 
and in the future.

Health Care 
Consulting 
Services Claims Recovery

Revenue Cycle Enhancement

Coding Department Redesign

Coding Validation

Regulatory Compliance

Market Intelligence & 
Benchmarking

Feasibility Studies

M&A Support

Provider Risk Analysis, 
Contracting & Operational Design

Uncompensated Care

Medical Education

Provider-based Licensure &
Certification

Medicare & Medicaid

OP E RATIONAL
IMP ROV E M E NTGOV E RNME NT COMP L IANCE

S T RATE GY  &  INTE GRATION

COS T RE IMBURS E ME NT

Health Care Consulting

Litigation Support

Employer Health BenefitsHIPAA Reviews & Assessments

Corporate Compliance Operational Assessments & 
Process Improvement

LE AN CONS ULTING

3P + Innovation

Lean Management & Hoshin

Lean Operations

Quality & Patient Safety



30

We offer a full range of services and 

specializations that span accounting, 

consulting, and wealth management to 

suit your specific needs.

Services

Investments

Insurance

Family Office

Investments

Financial Planning

Tax

Valuations

Restructuring

M&A Tax

Investment Banking

Due Diligence

Succession Planning

Performance Audits

Business Planning

Development & Integration

Assessment & Planning

Cybersecurity

Compliance

Transfer Pricing

Tax Structuring

Controversy & Dispute Resolution

State & Local

International

Credits & Incentives

Compensation & Benefits

Accounting Methods

Accounting for Income Taxes (ASC 740)

Sustainability

Contract Compliance

Outsourced Accounting

Internal Audit

Public Company & SEC

Employee Benefit Plans

Financial Statement Audits

I N S T I T U T I O N A L

I N D I V I D U A L

T R A N S A C T I O N S

S T R A T E G Y  &  O P E R A T I O N S

I T

T A X

A S S U R A N C E

Wealth ManagementConsultingAccounting



31

Health Care Operational Consulting

We have the resources to help you identify risk, take 
advantage of emerging opportunities, and proactively 
address any operational inefficiencies:

• Charge capture re-design

• Feasibility consultants

• HIPAA security reviews and assessments

• Claim analysis practice

• Cost segregation studies 

• Corporate compliance practice

• Internal audit services

• Technology assessments and consulting

• Real estate and construction advisory services

• Third-party reimbursement services

• Research center

• Wage index review 

• Revenue cycle management 



32

Cost Reimbursement Consulting

Optimizing your organization’s reimbursement requires 
coordination across people, systems, and processes. That’s 
why, as we develop strategies to help you navigate Medicare 
and Medicaid’s ever-changing landscape, we consider your 
financial statements, budgeting, and business planning.

We offer a detailed approach that focuses on five key areas:

• Medicare and Medicaid cost reimbursement

• Provider-based licensure and certification

• Medical education programs

• Wage index reviews

• Uncompensated care



33

Operational Improvement Consulting

Moss Adams has provided operational improvement 
consulting services for numerous health insurers, from 
multimillion-member national health plans to small regional 
Medi-Cal and Medicaid insurers. 

We offer expertise in six key areas:

• Operational assessments and process improvement

• Revenue cycle 

• Claims auditing, recovery, and revenue assessment

• Litigation support

• Employer health benefits



34

Government Compliance Consulting

Navigating the ins and outs of government compliance takes 
a trained eye. We work closely with you to help identify areas 
of improvement, correct billing errors, and prevent future 
oversights. 

We focus on four key areas:

• Regulatory compliance

• Coding validation

• Coding department redesign

• EHR internal controls



35

Strategy and Integration Consulting

Our health care consultants are dedicated to helping you gain 
efficiency, streamline operations, and find opportunity in a 
time of rapid industry upheaval. 

We focus on:

• Strategic planning and implementation

• Provider risk analysis, contracting, and operational design

• Market intelligence and benchmarking

• Service line enhancement

• Feasibility studies and analysis

• Managed care assessment and negotiation

• M&A support

• Financial modeling



36

Internal Audit Solutions

We offer a custom, risk-based approach to helping you 
achieve the desired level of assurance; achieve your 
organization’s goals; improve your local capability and 
efficiency; and reduce your compliance costs. 

Working with you, we can address such challenges as:

• Board of Governors expectations

• Internal control problems

• Inefficient business processes, costly or wasteful practices

• High fixed internal audit costs

• Unfulfilled internal audit needs

• Insufficient coverage of information technology, tax

• Compliance failures



37

In today’s fast-paced world, we know how precious your 
time is. We also know that knowledge is key. 
These resources offer what you need to know, when you 
need to know it, and is presented in the format that fits your 
life.

We’ll keep you informed to help you stay abreast of critical 
industry issues. 

Moss Adams closely monitors regulatory agencies, 
participates in industry and technical forums, and writes 
about a wide range of relevant accounting, tax, and 
business issues to keep you informed. 

We also offer CPE webinars and events which are archived 
and available on demand, allowing you to watch them on 
your schedule. 

Insights and Resources



38

In today’s fast-paced world, we know how precious your time is. We also know that knowledge is key. 
These resources offer what you need to know, when you need to know it, and is presented in the format 
that fits your life.

Connect With Us

LinkedIn: www.linkedin.com/company/moss-adams-llp

Twitter: @Moss_Adams

Subscribe to our emails: www.mossadams.com/subscribe

RSS feeds: www.mossadams.com/RSS

YouTube: http://www.youtube.com/mossadamsllp



The material appearing in this presentation is for informational purposes only and should not be 

construed as advice of any kind, including, without limitation, legal, accounting, or investment advice. 

This information is not intended to create, and receipt does not constitute, a legal relationship, including, 

but nor limited to, an accountant-client relationship. Although this information may have been prepared 

by professionals, it should not be used as a substitute for professional services. If legal, accounting, 

investment, or other professional advice is required, the services of a professional should be sought.

Assurance, tax, and consulting offered through Moss Adams LLP. Wealth management offered through 

Moss Adams Wealth Advisors LLC. Investment banking offered through Moss Adams Capital LLC.39

Stacy J. Stelzriede, Partner

Stacy.Stelzriede@mossadams.com

(310) 295-3772

Stelian Damu, Senior Manager

Stelian.Damu@mossadams.com

(818) 577-1914

Jae Hyun, Senior

Jae.Hyun@mossadams.com

(310) 481-1251



 

 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

WITH SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
 

FOR 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
 

June 30, 2017 



	

	

Table of Contents 
	
	
	 	 	 	 PAGE 
 
Report of Independent Auditors 1–2 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3–7 
 
Financial Statements 
 Statement of Net Position 8 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 9 
 Statement of Cash Flows 10–11 
 Notes to Financial Statements 12–43 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 Schedule of Funding Progress for the County of Kern 44 
 Actuarial Assumptions and Methodology for the County of Kern 45 
 Schedule of Contributions for the County of Kern 46 
 Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 47 
 Schedule of Contributions 48 
 
Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control 
 Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
 Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements  
 In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 49–50 
 Schedule of Findings and Responses 51–53 
 
	
	



	

1 

Report of Independent Auditors 
	
	
The Board of Governors 
Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
Report on Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kern County Hospital Authority (“Kern 
Medical”), a discretely presented component unit of the County of Kern, California, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Kern 
Medical’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 



	

2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net 
position of Kern Medical as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter  

As discussed in Note 1, effective July 1, 2016, ownership, control, management, medical facilities, and 
operation of Kern Medical Center, an enterprise fund of the County of Kern, was transferred to the Kern 
County Hospital Authority. The Kern County Hospital Authority is a local unit of government separate and 
apart from the County and any other public entity. Subsequent to the transfer of operations, management 
determined that the pension liabilities that were previously allocated to Kern Medical Center had been 
overstated, which required an adjustment to the opening balance sheet of Kern Medical.  Additionally, 
with the change in ownership, Kern Medical assumed the legacy employees and recorded an additional 
liability for worker’s compensation. 
 
Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and other post-employment benefit schedules, including schedules of funding 
progress, on pages 3–10, and 51–55, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21, 
2017 on our consideration of Kern Medical’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Kern Medical’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
 
Los Angeles, California 
December 21, 2017 



	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

	

3 

 
The discussion and analysis of the Kern County Hospital Authority (the Authority or Kern Medical) 
financial performance provides an overall review of the financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2017. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to provide further information about Kern Medical’s 
financial performance as a whole. Readers should also review the financial statements and the 
accompanying notes to the financial statements to enhance their understanding of Kern Medical’s 
financial performance. 
 
Summary of Organization and Business 
 
Kern Medical Center, an enterprise fund of the County of Kern, operated as a constituent department of 
the County of Kern (the County) through June 30, 2016.  Effective July 1, 2016, under the authority of the 
Kern County Board of Supervisors, the Kern County Hospital Authority was formed to operate and control 
Kern Medical Center.  The Authority was formed to provide an organizational and operational structure 
that facilitates and improves Kern Medical Center’s ability to function with flexibility, responsiveness, and 
innovation.  Under the Kern County Hospital Authority, Kern Medical continues to function as a 
designated public hospital and a critical component of the state and county health care safety net. The 
creation of an independent Authority to provide maintenance, operation, management, and control of 
Kern Medical and its related health care resources in a manner consistent with the County’s 
obligations under Section 17000 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, is the best way to achieve 
these objectives in a manner that ensures continued viability of Kern Medical and its constitutes an 
ongoing material benefit to the County and its residents. The Authority is a local unit of government 
and a subdivision of the state separate and apart from the County and any other public entity. The 
Authority is governed by a Board of Governors appointed by the County Board of Supervisors. The 
Authority is not governed by or subject to the County of Kern Rules of Civil Service Commission and 
not governed by, or subject to, other operational rules of the county, including, but not limited to, 
those relating to personnel and procurement. 
 
Key Performance Indicators 
 
 

Admissions (Excluding Births) 9,659              
Discharges 11,262            
Births 2,604              
Patient Days (Excluding Newborns) 48,841            
Average Daily Census 134                  

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements of the Kern Medical report information about Kern Medical’s use of accounting 
methods, which are similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short and 
long-term financial information about its activities and include the statement of net position; the statement 
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and the statement of cash flows. In addition, the 
accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
	

4 

 
The statement of net position includes all of Kern Medical’s assets, liabilities and deferred inflows and 
outflows and provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and 
obligations to Kern Medical’s creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital 
structure of Kern Medical and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of Kern Medical. 
 
The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position reports all of the revenues and 
expenses during the time period indicated. This statement measures the success of Kern Medical’s 
operations over the past year and can be used to determine whether Kern Medical has successfully 
recovered all of its costs through its charges at established rates and other revenues. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a unique indicator of whether or not the financial 
position of Kern Medical is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of cash flows reports cash receipts; cash payments; and changes in cash resulting from 
operations, investing, and financing activities, and the changes in cash during the reporting period. 
 
The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are essential 
to a full understanding of material data provided in the statements. The notes present information about 
Kern Medical’s accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, material risks, obligations, 
commitments, contingencies, and subsequent events, if any. 
 
Financial Analysis 
 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 
 

Current assets 119,189,770$     
Capital assets 52,936,227         
Restricted and other assets 912,973              

Total assets 173,038,970       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 71,752,645         

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 244,791,615$     

Current liabilities 104,758,923$     
Noncurrent liabilities 396,285,808       

Total liabilities 501,044,731       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 22,238,926         

Net investment in capital assets 49,686,149         
Restricted 6,682,961           
Unrestricted (334,861,152)      

Total net position (278,492,042)      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and net position 244,791,615$     

 
 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

	

5 

 
Statement of Net Position Highlights: 

Current assets – Current assets at June 30, 2017 were $119.2 million, consisting mainly of cash and net 
patient accounts receivable. The ending cash balance of $67.3 million and the ending net patient 
accounts receivable balance of $39.7 million were due in large part to improved efficiency in revenue 
cycle processes realized after the implementation of new policies and procedures. Receivables booked 
from third party governmental payers are due mostly to the approval by the Federal Centers for Medicaid 
and Medicare of the renewal of California’s Section 1115 Medicaid Waiver in December 2015 and other 
programs under the Affordable Care Act and Medi-Cal Managed Care Supplemental Programs 
 
Deferred outflows of resources – In connection with GASB No. 68, the Kern Medical reported deferred 
outflows of resources of $71.8 million related to changes in actuarial assumptions, net differences 
between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments and contributions made subsequent 
to the measurement date. 
 
Long-term liabilities – Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2017 had a balance of $396.3 million, consisting 
mainly of a $329.9 million net pension liability. 

Deferred inflows of resources – In connection with GASB No. 68, Kern Medical reported deferred inflows 
of resources of $22.2 million related to the net differences between pension plan expected and actual 
experience and changes in proportion and differences between Kern Medical contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions.  
 
Unrestricted net position – The unrestricted net position balance of negative $334.9 million at June 30, 
2017 consists mainly of net pension liability. 
 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 

Operating revenue 360,563,063$     
Nonoperating revenue 942,811               

Total revenue 361,505,874       

Depreciation and amortization 5,994,971            
Operating expenses 340,881,090       
Nonoperating expenses 3,226,481            

Total expenses 350,102,542       

Net loss before transfers and special items 11,403,332         

Special Item - Transfer of Operations (289,895,374)      

Change in net position (278,492,042)      

Beginning net position -                          

Ending net position (278,492,042)$    

 
 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
	

6 

 
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position Highlights: 
 
The first component of Kern Medical’s net position is its operating revenue. The primary components of 
operating revenue are as follows: 
 

Net patient service revenue totaled $199.9 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  Kern 
Medical also recognized revenue from various indigent patient funding sources including IGT 
Programs, Disproportionate Share funding, the Hospital Fee Program totaling $119.7 million for 
the year. County funding of $29.2 million was recognized as revenue for the year.  

 
The second component of Kern Medical’s net position is its operating expenses. Operating expenses 
totaled $340.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2017. Operating expenses consist mainly of salaries 
and benefits expenses of $204.4 million and services and supplies expenses of $132.6 million.  
 
Analysis of Capital Assets 
 
In fiscal year 2016-17, Kern Medical’s capital assets increased approximately $3.8 million due to 
additions to Construction in Progress (CIP) and various other additions and deletions of equipment and 
additions of accumulated depreciation. The remaining activity related to various additions and deletions of 
equipment and additions of accumulated depreciation. The table below provides summarized information 
for Kern Medical’s outstanding capital assets at June 30, 2017: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 1,744,593$      3,679,246$     -$                     5,423,839$      

Capital Assets Being Depreciated 135,665,041    6,093,968       120,367           141,638,642    

Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization 88,227,189      6,005,457       106,392           94,126,254      

Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 47,437,852      88,511             13,975             47,512,388      

Capital Assets, Net 49,182,445$    3,767,757$     13,975$           52,936,227$    

Additional information on Kern Medical’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of this report. 
   



	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

	

7 

 
Long-Term Debt Summary 
 
In fiscal year 2016-17, the reduction of long-term debt is the result of principal payments on existing debt. 
The table below provides summarized information for the Kern Medical’s outstanding long-term liabilities 
at June 30, 2017: 
 

Amounts Amounts Due
Balance Incurred Satisfied Balance Due Within in More Than

July 1, 2016 or Issued or Matured June 30, 2017 One Year One Year

Certificates of Participation 4,236,774$    -$                986,694$      3,250,080$    1,032,670$  2,217,410$    
Unamortized Net Premium 79,976           -                  19,993          59,983           -                   59,983           
Capital Lease 2,452,213      -                  527,672        1,924,541      537,387       1,387,154      
Pension Obligation Bonds 30,923,172    -                  2,481,767     28,441,405    2,674,831    25,766,574    

Total 37,692,135$  -$                4,016,126$   33,676,009$  4,244,888$  29,431,121$  

Additional information on the Medical Center’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 of this report. 
 
Economic Factors Affecting Next Year 
 

 Patient volumes from all payor sources are expected to remain flat. Kern Medical does anticipate 
that the volume will stay constant. However, due to the Affordable Care Act, Kern Medical has 
realized a shift in the payor source toward Medi-Cal and Managed Medi-Cal plans as more 
patients qualify for some form of insurance coverage. 

 For FY 2017-18, Kern Medical will continue to participate in the governmental funding from the 
Public Hospital Redesign and Incentives in Medi-Cal (PRIME) program. This program replaces 
the Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment (DSRIP) program funding that the Medical Center 
qualified for in previous years. Kern Medical also qualified for the Global Payment Program 
(GPP). The GPP replaces the Disproportionate Share Hospital Intergovernmental Transfer (DSH-
IGT) funding and the Safety Net Care Pool (SNCP) funding that the Medical Center qualified for 
in previous years. Kern Medical will also participate in the Whole Person Care (WPC) pilot 
program for FY 2017-18. This program is also part of the Section 1115 Medicaid Waiver, Medi-
Cal 2020, that was approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) in 
December 2015. This program is designed to provide integrated, patient-centered care through 
coordination of physical and behavioral health and social services to meet patients’ holistic 
needs.  

 Expenses are expected to remain flat without significant increases to the employee benefit 
expense.  

 The timing of State and Federal funding will continue to impact cash flow throughout the year. 
 
Contacting Kern Medical’s Chief Financial Officer 
 
This financial report is designed to provide citizens, customers, and creditors with a general overview of 
Kern Medical’s finances, and to demonstrate Kern Medical’s accountability for the money it receives. If 
you have any questions about this report, or need additional financial information, please contact the 
Chief Financial Officer, Kern Medical, 1700 Mount Vernon Ave., Bakersfield, California 93306. 
	



	

8	 See accompanying notes.	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2017 
	
	

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash (Note 3) 25,777,320$            
Pooled cash and investments (Note 3) 41,531,160
Revolving fund cash (Note 3) 10,980
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful
  accounts of $19,614,265 (Note 5) 39,712,617
Other receivables (Note 12) 3,984,219
Interest receivable 147,030
Inventories 4,488,031
Prepaid expenses 3,538,413

Total current assets 119,189,770            

CASH AND INVESTMENTS DEPOSITED WITH TRUSTEE (Notes 3 and 4) 912,973

CAPITAL ASSETS, net (Note 6) 52,936,227              

Total assets 173,038,970

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 15) 71,752,645              

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 244,791,615$          

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 28,808,010$            
Due to governmental agencies (Note 11) 45,451,277
Salaries and employee benefits payable 6,796,040
Interest payable, current portion (Note 9) 4,509,453
Current portion of compensated absences payable (Note 7) 11,490,255              
Current portion of capital leases (Note 8)   537,387                   
Current portion of estimate for professional liability (Note 17) 2,429,000
Current portion of estimate for workers' compensation liability (Note 17) 1,030,000
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 9) 3,707,501                

Total current liabilities 104,758,923            

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest payable, non-current portion (Note 9) 18,639,954              
Capital lease, non-current portion (Note 8)  1,387,154                
Compensated absences payable (Note 7) 3,830,085                
Net pension liability (Note 15) 329,935,445            
Net other post-employment benefits (Note 18) 4,201,203                
Estimate for professional liability (Note 17) 3,475,000
Estimate for  workers' compensation liability (Note 17) 6,773,000
Long-term debt, net of current portion (Note 8) 28,043,967              

Total liabilities 501,044,731            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 16) 22,238,926              

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 49,686,149              
Restricted for: 

Debt service 912,973                   
Capital assets 5,769,988                

Unrestricted (334,861,152)           

Total net position (278,492,042)           

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position 244,791,615$          

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

	 	



	

See accompanying notes.	 9	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position  

For The Year Ended June 30, 2017  
	
	

OPERATING REVENUES
Net patient service revenue net of provision for uncollectible
  accounts of $472,077 199,855,392$  
Indigent patient care funding 119,734,851
County funding 29,237,877
Other operating revenue 11,734,943

Total operating revenues 360,563,063    

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits 204,445,460
Services and supplies 132,550,710
Other expenses 3,884,920
Depreciation and amortization 5,994,971

Total operating expenses 346,876,061    

OPERATING INCOME 13,687,002      

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest on bank deposits and investments, net 812,220           
Aid from other governmental agencies 58,598
Other nonoperating revenues 71,993
Interest expense (3,226,481)       

Total nonoperating expenses, net (2,283,670)       

Net income before capital contribution and transfers 11,403,332      

SPECIAL ITEM - TRANSFER OF OPERATIONS (Note 1) (289,895,374)   

Change in net position (278,492,042)   

NET POSITION, Beginning of year -                       

NET POSITION, End of year (278,492,042)$ 

	
	
	 	



	

10	 See accompanying notes.	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Statement of Cash Flows 
For The Year Ended June 30, 2017  
	
	
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received for patient/current services 187,175,807$   
Cash received for other operations 188,292,563     
Cash paid for salaries and benefits (200,774,646)    
Cash paid for services and supplies (122,076,018)    

Net cash provided by operating activities 52,617,706       

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from various County funds 130,591            
Cash received for advances 379,720,816     
Cash repayments of advances (379,720,816)    
Interest paid - pension obligation bond (4,828,018)        
Principal paid - pension obligation bond (2,481,767)        

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (7,179,194)        

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition or construction of capital assets (9,762,728)        
Proceeds from sale of surplus assets 13,975              
Payment of long-term debt - capital lease (527,672)           
Capital lease interest paid (41,891)             
Payment of long-term debt - Certificates of Participation (COP) (986,694)           
COP interest paid (164,232)           

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (11,469,242)      

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on bank deposits and investments 750,698            

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 34,719,968       

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year 33,512,465       

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year 68,232,433$     

	
	

	 	



	

See accompanying notes.	 11	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2017  
	
	

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 
to the Statement of Net Position:

Cash 25,777,320$       
Pooled cash and investments 41,531,160         
Revolving fund cash 10,980                 
Cash and investments deposited with a trustee 912,973               

Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 68,232,433$       

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash used in
operating activities:

Operating income 13,687,002$       
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

provided used in operating activities:
        Provision for bad debts 472,077               
        Depreciation and amortization 5,994,971            
        Changes in assets and liabilities:

     Patient accounts receivable, net (13,151,662)        
     Other receivables 27,584,892         
     Inventories (1,113,502)          
     Prepaid expenses (1,074,952)          
     Deferred outflows of resources (26,380,147)        
     Accounts payable and accrued expenses 8,088,753            
     Salaries and employee benefits payable (3,762,823)          
     Compensated absences payable 5,401,187            
     Estimate for professional liability 1,624,941            
     Estimate for professional liability 55,000                 
     Due to governmental agencies 6,779,372            
     Net other post-employment benefits obligations (1,153,687)          
     Net pension liability 22,627,046         
     Deferred inflows of resources 6,939,238            

Net cash provided by operating activities 52,617,706$       

	
	
	



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

12 

	
Note 1 – Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity 
 
Kern County Hospital Authority (the Authority or Kern Medical) is a 222-bed acute care teaching hospital 
affiliated with the University of California Schools of Medicine at Los Angeles, San Diego, and Irvine. Kern 
Medical is responsible for the provision of health care services for emergency, outpatient, and inpatient 
medical care to all classes of patients including Medicare and Medi-Cal eligible, medically indigent 
persons, and inmates of the County of Kern (the County) institutions and juvenile facilities. The 
management of Kern Medical reports directly to the Kern Medical’s Board of Governors.   
 
AB 2546 passed the California State Legislature on September 26, 2014 and authorized the Board of 
Supervisors of the County to establish, by ordinance, the Kern County Hospital Authority to manage, 
administer, and control Kern Medical Center, an enterprise fund of the County, and other health care 
facilities, and other functions affiliated or consolidated with Kern Medical Center. The Board has adopted 
the ordinance organizing the Hospital Authority effective November 6, 2015.  Pursuant to the 
aforementioned legislation, effective July 1, 2016, ownership, control, management, medical facilities, and 
operation of Kern Medical Center was transferred to the Kern County Hospital Authority. The Kern County 
Hospital Authority is a local unit of government separate and apart from the County and any other public 
entity.  The Kern County Hospital Authority recognized the carrying values of assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources of the operations of the Kern Medical Center as of 
July 1, 2016, the effective transfer date. The Kern County Hospital Authority recognized the net position it 
received as a special item in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses and changes in position 
for the year ended June 30, 2017.  
 
On July 1, 2016, County and the Kern County Hospital Authority also entered into an Agreement for 
Health Care Services, Finance and Support (the Service Agreement) addressing certain financial 
relationships between the two parties, including:  

(i) County's financial support of the Authority in the form of loans and/or grants;  
(ii) Authority's assumption of certain liabilities of the County, which liabilities the County incurred 

in connection with prior operations of Kern Medical Center;  
(iii) The continued provision of certain health care services to residents of the County;  
(iv) Authority's participation in the County Treasury 
(v) County's consent for the Authority to participate in and receive, and otherwise access, certain 

County general purpose funds and local revenue fund amounts identified or earmarked for 
health care services to the indigent, including Medi-Cal beneficiaries and uninsured patients.  

 
The Service Agreement stipulates that the worker’s compensation benefits liability attributable to legacy 
employees hired before July 1, 2016 would be assumed by the Authority. The actuarially estimated 
legacy workers’ compensation benefits liability as of July 1, 2016 was approximately $7.8 million.  

Subsequent to the transfer of operations, management determined that the pension liabilities that were 
previously allocated to Kern Medical Center had been overstated, resulting from an error in the allocation 
calculation for General and Safety employees in the County’s internal allocation percentage. The initial 
allocation calculation did not exclude general employee costs out of safety related departments.  As a 
result, Kern Medical’s proportionate share of the County’s net pension liability transferred in had been 
overstated by approximately $38 million. Management determined that an adjustment to the opening 
balance of Kern Medical was required.  

  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

13 

 
Note 1 – Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity (continued) 
	
The following table summarizes the amounts recognized as of the effective transfer date, including the 
adjustments for the workers’ compensation and pension liabilities:  
 

Unadjusted Adjusted
Net Position Net Position 
Transferred Adjustments Transferred 

CURRENT ASSETS 97,131,637$       -$                        97,131,637$       

CASH AND INVESTMENTS DEPOSITED WITH TRUSTEE 906,469 -                          906,469

CAPITAL ASSETS, net 49,182,445         -                          49,182,445         

Total assets 147,220,551 -                          147,220,551

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 49,355,071         (3,982,578)          45,372,493         

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 196,575,622$     (3,982,578)$        192,593,044$     

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of estimate for workers' compensation liability -$                        1,000,000$         1,000,000$         
Other current liabilities 87,298,654         -                          87,298,654         

Total current liabilities 87,298,654         1,000,000            88,298,654         

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension liability 345,262,534       (37,954,135)        307,308,399
Estimate for  workers' compensation liability -                          6,748,000            6,748,000
Other noncurrent liabilities 64,833,677         -                          64,833,677         

Total noncurrent liabilities 410,096,211       (31,206,135)        378,890,076       

Total liabilities 497,394,865       (30,206,135)        467,188,730       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 15,299,688         -                          15,299,688         

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 44,945,672         -                          44,945,672         
Restricted for: 

Debt service 906,469               -                          906,469               
Capital assets 5,686,499            -                          5,686,499            
Education 844,037               -                          844,037               

Unrestricted (368,501,608)      26,223,557         (342,278,051)      

Total net position (316,118,931)      26,223,557         (289,895,374)      

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources

  and net position 196,575,622$     (3,982,578)$        192,593,044$     

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

14 

 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies 
 
Basis of accounting and presentation – The accompanying financial statements have been prepared 
using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for healthcare organizations and are presented in 
accordance with the reporting model as prescribed in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statement ‐ and Management’s Discussion and Analysis ‐ for State 
and Local Governments. GASB Statement No. 34 and subsequent amendments including GASB 
Statement No. 63 as discussed below, established standards for external financial reporting and requires 
that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following net position 
categories: 
 

Net investment in capital assets – Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding 
principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets.  

 
Restricted net position – Assets whose use by Kern Medical are subject to externally imposed 
constraints that can be fulfilled by actions of Kern Medical pursuant to those constraints or that 
expire by the passage of time. Restricted resources are used in accordance with Kern Medical’s 
policies. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, the determination to 
use restricted or unrestricted resources is made on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Unrestricted net position – This amount represents the amount of net position that is not subject to 
externally imposed constraints. Unrestricted net position may be designated for specific purposes by 
action of the Board of Supervisors or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with 
outside parties. 

 
Use of estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
 
Pooled cash and investments – Pooled cash and investments are managed by the County Treasury in 
a commingled pool in accordance with the County Investment Policy. The County Treasury Oversight 
Committee is responsible for the regulatory oversight of the commingled pool. The County reports all of its 
investments, including the investments of its commingled pool, at fair value. The County Treasurer 
determines the fair value of the pool on a monthly basis based upon quoted market prices. The net 
appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value of investments is included in the interest on bank deposits and 
investment balance. Realized earnings and losses are allocated quarterly to commingled investment pool 
participants based on the participants’ average daily cash balance relative to the entire pool. A negative 
average cash balance results in an earnings charge that is netted against the interest on bank deposits 
and investments balance. 
 
Information regarding the County’s cash and investments can be found in the notes to the County’s basic 
financial statements. 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

15 

 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies (continued) 
 
Patient accounts receivable – Kern Medical reports patient accounts receivable for services rendered at 
net realizable amounts from third-party payers, patients and others. Kern Medical provides an allowance 
for uncollectible accounts based upon a review of outstanding receivables and historical collection 
information. As a service to the patient, Kern Medical bills third-party payers directly and bills the patient 
when the patient’s liability is determined. Patient accounts receivable are due in full when billed. Accounts 
are considered delinquent and subsequently written off as bad debts based on individual credit evaluation 
and specific circumstances of the account. 
 
Inventories – Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. Supply inventories are 
stated at the lower of cost, or market. 
 
Capital assets – Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are stated at cost if 
purchased, or fair value on the date received if donated. Kern Medical has established a policy to 
capitalize expenses for capital assets with an individual cost of $5,000 for equipment, $25,000 for 
intangibles, and $50,000 for structures with a useful life greater than one year. Interest cost incurred on 
borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a component of the 
cost of acquiring those assets. Intangible assets are amortized based on estimated useful life and will 
vary by item. Capital assets other than intangible assets are depreciated using the straight-line method 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:  
 

Structures and improvements  10 to 40 years 
Equipment and intangibles  3 to 15 years 

 
Capital assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
service utility of the capital asset may have significantly and unexpectedly declined. Capital assets are 
considered impaired if both the decline in service utility of the capital asset is large in magnitude and the 
event or change in circumstance is outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset. Such events or 
changes in circumstances that may be indicative of impairment include evidence of physical damage, 
enactment or approval of laws or regulations or other changes in environmental factors, technological 
changes or evidence of obsolescence, changes in the manner or duration of use of a capital asset, and 
construction stoppage. The determination of the impairment loss is dependent upon the event or 
circumstance in which the impairment occurred. Impairment losses, if any, are recorded in the statement 
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. There were no impairment losses recorded in the 
year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Compensated absences – Kern Medical policies permit most employees to accumulate vacation and 
sick leave benefits that may be realized as paid time off or, in limited circumstances, as a cash payment. 
Expense and the related liability are recognized as vacation benefits and are earned whether the 
employee is expected to realize the benefit as time off or in cash. Expense and the related liability for sick 
leave benefits are recognized when earned to the extent the employee is expected to realize the benefit 
in cash determined using the termination payment method. Compensated absence liabilities are 
computed using the regular pay and termination pay rates in effect at the statement of net position date 
plus an additional amount for compensation-related payments such as Social Security and Medicare 
taxes computed using rates in effect at that date.  
	 	



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

16 

 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies (continued) 
 
Net patient service revenue – Kern Medical has agreements with third-party payers that provide for 
payments to Kern Medical at amounts different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is 
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts receivable from patients, third-party payers, and others 
for services rendered, including a provision for bad debt and estimated retroactive adjustments under 
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated 
basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods, as final settlements 
are determined.  
 
Normal estimation differences between subsequent cash collections on patient accounts receivable and 
net patient accounts receivable estimated in the prior year are reported as adjustments to net patient 
service revenue in the current period.  
 
Third-party payers – Kern Medical is reimbursed for services provided to patients under certain 
programs administered by governmental agencies. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and 
Medi-Cal programs are complex and subject to interpretation. Kern Medical believes that it is in 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened 
investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory inquiries have been 
made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and 
interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the 
Medicare and Medi-Cal programs. 
 
The majority of Kern Medical’s receivables are related to the care of patients covered by Medi-Cal, 
Medicare, and special funding created by legislative acts that subsidize certain health care facilities that 
treat a disproportionate share of Medi-Cal beneficiaries. 
 
Uncompensated care – The County is mandated to provide medical care to indigent and dependent 
poor County residents under California Welfare and Institutions Code Section 17000. The County fulfills 
its Section 17000 obligation through services provided at Kern Medical. Through its Medically Indigent 
Adult Program, patients are charged for services and supplies based on their ability to pay. In assessing a 
patient’s ability to pay, Kern Medical utilizes State-determined poverty levels. Additionally, Kern Medical 
provides services to patients that are outside of the Medically Indigent Adult Program and does not 
receive compensation for those services. Kern Medical maintains records to identify, monitor, and report 
the level of indigent and uncompensated care provided to the community. These records include the 
estimate cost of services and supplies furnished yet uncompensated for. The following information 
measures the level of uncompensated care provided during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
 

Estimated Cost of Services Provided 
but Uncompensated 21,000,000$       

  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

17 

 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies (continued) 
 
Pensions – For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Local Government of the County of Kern’s Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association (KCERA) 
plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on 
the same basis as they are reported by KCERA. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Disclosures about fair value of financial instruments – The carrying amount of revolving fund cash, 
pooled cash and investments, cash and investments deposited with a trustee, patient accounts 
receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair value 
because of the short-term maturity of these instruments. 
 
Risk management – Kern Medical is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illness; natural 
disasters; and employee health, dental, and accident benefits. As discussed in Note 13, commercial 
insurance coverage is purchased by Kern Medical for claims arising from such matters where the Kern 
Medical has not retained the risk of loss. Kern Medical is self-insured for medical malpractice claims and 
judgments. The provision for estimated self-insured medical malpractice includes estimates of the 
ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), and other allocated 
claim adjustment expenses. 
 
Concentration of credit risk – Receivables from government programs present the only concentrated 
group of credit risk for Kern Medical. Management does not believe that there are any credit risks 
associated with these governmental agencies. Negotiated and private receivables consist of receivables 
from various payers, including individuals involved in diverse activities, subject to differing economic 
conditions and do not represent any concentrated credit risk to Kern Medical. Management continually 
monitors and adjusts its reserves and allowances associated with these receivables, and such 
allowances have historically been adequate to cover losses realized. 
 
Income taxes – Kern Medical is exempt from Federal and State income tax pursuant to Internal Revenue 
Code (IRC) Section 115 and similar provisions of the California Franchise Tax Code and is also exempt 
from Federal and State income tax filing requirements. 
 
Cash and investments deposited with a trustee – Cash and investments deposited with a trustee 
represent restricted cash and investments, which include unexpected bond proceeds, interest earnings, 
and reserves established in accordance with related bond indentures. These funds are managed by fiscal 
agents in accordance with debt agreements. 
 
Operating revenues and expenses – The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position 
distinguishes between operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues result 
from exchange transactions associated with providing health care services, Kern Medical’s principal 
activity. Non-exchange revenues, including grants, contributions and income (losses) from investments, 
are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are all expenses incurred to provide health 
care services.  
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

18 

	
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies (continued) 
 
Recent accounting pronouncements – During the year ended June 30, 2016, Kern Medical adopted 
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application which requires Kern Medical to use 
valuation techniques which are appropriate under the circumstances and are either a market approach, a 
cost approach or income approach. There was no material impact on Kern Medical’s financial statements 
as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 72.	
 
In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary objective of GASB Statement No. 75 is to 
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits 
other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by 
state and local governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other 
entities. GASB Statement No. 75 results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing 
standards of accounting and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) 
with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and 
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This guidance is effective for Kern Medical in the 
year ended June 30, 2018. Kern Medical is currently assessing the impact of this standard on Kern 
Medical’s financial statements.  
 
 
Note 3 – Pooled Cash and Investments 
 
Kern Medical’s share of the County’s total pooled cash and investments is included in the Statement of 
Net Position under the captions pooled cash and investments, revolving fund cash, and cash and 
investments deposited with a trustee. Substantially all the County’s cash balances are pooled and 
invested by the County Treasurer for the purpose of increasing interest earnings through investment 
activities. Interest earned on pooled investments is credited to Kern Medical based upon Kern Medical’s 
average daily deposit balance during the allocation period with all remaining interest deposited with the 
County.  
 
The framework for measuring fair value provides a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (level 3). 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

19 

 
Note 3 – Pooled Cash and Investments (continued) 
	
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows: 
 
Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 

liabilities in active markets. 
 
Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in 

active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and inputs that 
are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or 
other means. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input 
must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 

 
Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 

measurement. 
 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques maximize the use 
of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
The County Treasurer determines the fair value of the pool on a monthly basis based upon quoted market 
prices. The portfolio is typically comprised of U.S. agency securities and high-quality short-term 
instruments, resulting in a relatively short-weighted average maturity. Fair value calculations are based on 
market values provided by the County’s investment custodian. Investments in the pool are highly liquid. 
All of the County’s pooled cash and investments accounted for at fair value are considered to be Level 1 
as of June 30, 2017. Kern Medical does not have any withdrawal restrictions on the pooled cash and 
investments. 
 
The valuation methods used by Kern Medical may produce a fair value calculation that may not be 
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although Kern Medical 
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of 
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could 
result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date. 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2017, consist of the following: 
 

Deposits:
Cash 25,777,320$       
Cash in Revolving Fund 10,980                 

Pooled Funds:
Cash and Investments in County Treasury 41,531,160         
Cash and Investments Deposited with Bond Trustee 912,973

Total Cash and Investments 68,232,433$       

 



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

20 

 
Note 3 – Pooled Cash and Investments (continued) 
	
Authorized investments – Investments in the County Treasurer’s pool have been made as permitted by 
the County’s written investment policy as approved by the Board of Supervisors. Investment of debt 
proceeds held by bond trustees is governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the general 
provisions of the California Government Code or the County’s investment policy. The table on the 
following page identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustees.  
 
Interest rate risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates will adversely 
affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the 
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in the market interest rates. 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of Kern Medical’s investments to market interest rate 
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the County’s investments by 
maturity:  
 

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60 More than 
Investment Type Amount or Less Months Months 60 Months

County Investment Pool 41,531,160$     41,531,160$     -$                      -$                      -$                      
Held by Bond Trustee:

Investment Contract 859,775             -                        -                        -                        859,775             
Money Market Funds 53,198               53,198               -                        -                        -                        

Total 42,444,133$     41,584,358$     -$                      -$                      859,775$          

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

 
Credit risk – Generally credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 
the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the 
California Government Code, the County’s investment policy, and the actual rating as rated by Standard 
& Poor’s as of year-end for each investment type. 
 

Minimum
Legal

Investment Type Amount Rating AAAm-G Not Rated

County Investment Pool 41,531,160$      N/A -$                 41,531,160$     
Held by Bond Trustee:

Cash Equivalents 859,775             N/A -                   859,775            
Money Market 53,198               AAAm-G 53,198         -                        

Total 42,444,133$      53,198$       42,390,935$     

Ratings at Year-End

 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

21 

 
Note 3 – Pooled Cash and Investments (continued) 
	
Concentration of credit risk – Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the failure of any one issuer 
would place an undue financial burden on Kern Medical. Kern Medical’s investment with the County 
Treasury’s pool mitigates the concentration of credit risk by diversifying the portfolio and limiting 
investments in any one issuer to no more than 5 percent of the total portfolio, other than securities issued 
by the U.S. government and its affiliated agencies. Investments issued by, or explicitly guaranteed by the 
U.S. government, and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled 
investments are exempt from this requirement, as they are normally diversified themselves. 
 
Kern Medical’s debt agreement places no limit on the amount the County may invest in any one issuer.  
	
	
Note 4 – Cash and Investments Deposited with a Trustee 
 
Cash and investments deposited with a trustee relate to construction debt refinancing and equipment 
acquisition funds from certificates of participation held by the trustee. Amounts held by trustee are to be 
used for the following purposes: 
 

Reserve Required by Debt Agreements 859,775$         
Construction of Facilities 53,198             

912,973$         

 
Cash and investments deposited with a trustee are invested in various cash equivalents, which are 
registered and held in trust in the County’s name. 
 
 
Note 5 – Patient Accounts Receivable 
 
Kern Medical grants credit without collateral to its patients, many of whom are area residents and are 
insured under third-party payer agreements. Gross patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2017 
consisted of: 
 

Medicare 11 %
Medi-Cal 54
Other third-party and commercial payor 15
Self pay 17
County responsibility 3

Total 100 %

 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

22 

 
Note 6 – Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization 
 
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, is shown below: 
 

July 1, June 30, 
2017 Additions Disposals 2017

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
Land 168,115$         2,280$             -$                     170,395$         
Construction in progress 1,576,478        3,676,966        -                       5,253,444        

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 1,744,593        3,679,246        -                       5,423,839        

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:
Equipment 42,449,363      4,528,380        120,367           46,857,376      
Structures and improvements 82,462,623      -                       -                       82,462,623      
Intangibles 10,753,055      1,565,588        -                       12,318,643      

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 135,665,041    6,093,968        120,367           141,638,642    

Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization for:
Equipment 30,436,283      3,215,861        106,392           33,545,752      
Structures and improvements 47,562,148      2,487,192        -                       50,049,340      
Intangibles 10,228,758      302,404           -                       10,531,162      

Total Accumulated Depreciation 88,227,189      6,005,457        106,392           94,126,254      

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 47,437,852      88,511             13,975             47,512,388      

Total Capital Assets, Net 49,182,445$    3,767,757$      13,975$           52,936,227$    

 
Note 7 – Compensated Absences Payable 
 
Under the terms of union contracts, employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts 
depending upon their respective bargaining unit. In the event of termination or death, an employee, or the 
employee’s estate, is compensated 100% of accumulated vacation. In the event of an employee’s death 
or retirement, excluding deferred retirement, an employee, or the employee’s estate, is compensated for 
accumulated sick leave in varying amounts from 50% to 100% depending on the employee’s bargaining 
unit and length of service. The value of accumulated vacation and sick leave as of June 30, 2017 is 
summarized below: 
 

Current Portion 11,490,255$    
Long-Term Portion 3,830,085        

15,320,340$    

 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

23 

 
Note 8 – Long-Term Debt 
 
The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions of Kern Medical for the year ended June 
30, 2017: 
 

Balance Incurred Satisfied Balance Due Within in More Than
2016 or Issued or Matured 2017 One Year One Year

Certificates of Participation, 
     2011 Refunding COP
     Series A - Kern Medical
     Center Portion 4,236,774$      -$                  986,694$         3,250,080$      1,032,670$      2,217,410$      

Unamortized Net Premium 79,976             -                    19,993             59,983             -                       59,983             
Capital Lease 2,452,213        -                    527,672           1,924,541        537,387           1,387,154        
Pension Obligation Bonds 30,923,172      -                    2,481,767        28,441,405      2,674,831        25,766,574      

Total 37,692,135$    -$                  4,016,126$      33,676,009$    4,244,888$      29,431,121$    

Scheduled principal and interest repayments for long-term debt are as follows: 
 

  Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest

2018 3,707,501            1,036,340            
2019 3,974,194            901,204               
2020 4,260,642            755,053               
2021 3,396,695            623,755               
2022 3,208,676            501,880               

2023 - 2028 13,143,777          9,090,063            

31,691,485$        12,908,295$        

 
Total interest costs incurred for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $3,226,481. 
 
Certificates of participation – The original issue amount of the 2011 Refunding Certificate of 
Participation (COP), Series A, is $8,558,425 and the expected maturity dates are from November 1, 
2011– 2019. The 2011 Refunding COP, Series A has fixed interest rates from 2.00% to 5.00%. The 
proceeds of the 2011 Refunding COP are being used for the acquisition of equipment and acquisition of 
construction and renovation of certain facilities. 
 
Under the terms of the COP issue, Kern Medical is required to maintain certain investments with a trustee 
to pay principal and interest. These investments are classified as cash and investments deposited with a 
trustee in the accompanying financial statements. 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

24 

 
Note 8 – Long-Term Debt (continued) 
 
Pension obligation bonds – In November 1995, the County issued pension obligation bonds to finance 
the County’s share of the unfunded accrued actuarial liability of the Kern County Employees’ Retirement 
Association. As of June 30, 2017, the amount of total 1995 pension obligation bonds outstanding for the 
County as a whole was $27,867,000. Of this amount, $4,721,626, was allocated to Kern Medical. The 
initial basis of the amount allocated to Kern Medical was determined by Kern Medical’s share of the 
County-wide retirement contribution for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1995. 
 
The bonds have various maturity dates between 2016 and 2022 for the capital appreciation bonds. 
Interest ranges from 6.16% to 7.26% for the current interest bonds and from 7.56% to 7.61% for the 
capital appreciation bonds. 
 
In May 2003, the County issued pension obligation bonds to finance the County’s share of the unfunded 
accrued actuarial liability of the Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association. In August 2008, the 
County issued pension obligation bonds, Series 2008 A. The Series 2003 B Bonds have been redeemed 
with the proceeds of the Series 2008 A Refunding Bonds. As of June 30, 2017, the amount of total 2003 
and 2008 pension obligation bonds outstanding for the County as a whole was $ 143,699,000. Of this 
amount, $23,719,784 was allocated to Kern Medical. The initial basis of the amount allocated to Kern 
Medical was determined by Kern Medical’s share of the County-wide retirement contribution for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2003. 
 
The Series 2003 A Bonds were issued as Current Interest Bonds and Capital Appreciation Bonds; the 
Series 2003 B were refunded as Adjustable Rate Bonds in August 2008. The bonds have various maturity 
dates between 2006 and 2023 for the Current Interest Bonds and from 2023 and 2028 for the Capital 
Appreciation Bonds. Series 2003 A Bonds have fixed interest rates that range from 2.33% to 4.88% for 
the current interest bonds and 5.50% to 5.57% for the capital appreciation bonds. The 2008 A Bonds 
have an adjustable rate. Adjustable rates follow LIBOR plus 0.75%. Starting in April 2014, the 2008 A 
Bonds have a fixed interest rate of 4.185%. 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

25 

 
Note 8 – Long-Term Debt (continued) 
	
Capital leases – Kern Medical has entered into several long-term lease purchase agreements for certain 
major pieces of equipment. At the end of the lease, when all terms have been met, the related equipment 
will become property of Kern Medical. 
 
The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for capital leases: 
 

  Year Ending
June 30,

2018 570,210               
2019 570,210               
2020 570,210               
2021 327,643               

Total minimum lease payments 2,038,273$          

Less amount representing interest 113,732               

Present value of future minimum lease payments 1,924,541$          

 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the interest expense and interest paid for the capital leases were 
$41,890.  
 
 
Note 9 – Interest Payable 
 
The following is a summary of interest payable transactions of Kern Medical for the year ended June 30, 
2017: 
 

Beginning Amount Amount Ending
June 30, 2017 Accrued Paid June 30, 2017

Current
Capital Lease Interest 15,960$           38,762$           41,890$           12,832$           
2011 Refunding COP, Series A 29,547             134,686           164,232           1                      
Pension Obligation Bonds (POB) 4,161,552        5,314,270        4,979,202        4,496,620        

Total Current Interest Payable 4,207,059        5,487,718        5,185,324        4,509,453        

Non-Current
POB Capital Appreciation Bonds 20,730,010      (2,137,634)       (47,578)            18,639,954      

Total Interest Payable 24,937,069$    3,350,084$      5,137,746$      23,149,407$    

 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

26 

 
Note 10 – Net Patient Service Revenue 
 
Kern Medical has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to Kern Medical at 
amounts different from its established rates. These payment arrangements include: 
 
Medicare – Inpatient acute care services and substantially all outpatient services rendered to Medicare 
program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient 
classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, acuity and other factors. Kern Medical is 
reimbursed for certain services at tentative rates with final settlement determined after submission of 
annual cost reports by Kern Medical and audits thereof by the Medicare administrative contractor. The 
Medicare administrative contractor has audited Kern Medical’s cost reports through June 30, 2014. 
 
Medi-Cal – Inpatient acute services rendered to Medi-Cal program beneficiaries are paid at a 
prospectively determined rate per discharge (APR-DRG). These rates vary according to a patient 
classification system based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors. Outpatient services are reimbursed 
based upon a fee schedule per procedure, test or service.  
 
Approximately 79% of net patient service revenue is from participation in the Medicare and state-
sponsored Medi-Cal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. Laws and regulations governing the 
Medicare and Medi-Cal programs are complex and subject to interpretation and change. As a result, it is 
reasonably possible that recorded estimates will change materially in the near term. 
  
Kern Medical has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, 
health maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. The basis for payment to Kern 
Medical under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from 
established charges and prospectively determined daily rates. 
 
 
Note 11 – Indigent Patient Care Funding 
 
Kern Medical is entitled to receive supplemental funding from various governmental sources based on the 
patients served. The following information summarizes the major payment arrangements for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2017. 
 

Global Payment Program (GPP) 25,560,825$     
PRIME 26,342,765       
Whole Person Care (WPC) 15,734,500       
Affordable Care Act (ACA) 24,964,701       
Medi-Cal managed care supplemental programs 17,967,774       
Other 9,164,286         

Total 119,734,851$   

 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

27 

 
Note 11 – Indigent Patient Care Funding (continued) 
	
Medi-Cal waiver – California’s Medi-Cal Hospital/Uninsured Care Demonstration Project (Demonstration) 
is a system for paying selected hospitals, including Kern Medical, for hospital care provided to Medi-Cal 
and uninsured patients. The Demonstration was negotiated between the State of California’s Department 
of Health Services (SDHS) and the Federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) in 2006, 
and covers the period from July 1, 2005, to June 30, 2010. The implementing State legislation (SB 1100) 
was enacted by the Legislature in September 2005. The five-year Demonstration affects payments for 23 
public hospitals, including all University of California owned hospitals, identified as Designated Public 
Hospitals, and private and non-designated public safety net hospitals that serve large numbers of Medi-
Cal patients. The program was extended in 2010 to cover the period from July 1, 2010, to June 30, 2015. 
The program was further extended in 2015 to cover the period from July 1, 2015, to June 30, 2020.  
 
Under the Demonstration, payments for the public hospitals are comprised of: 1) Fee for Service (FFS) 
cost-based reimbursement for inpatient hospital services (exclusive of physician component); 2) 
Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) Program payments (formerly SB 855); and 3) distribution from a 
newly created pool of Federal funding for uninsured care, known as the Safety Net Care Pool (SNCP). 
The nonfederal share of these three types of payments will be provided by the public hospitals rather than 
the State, primarily through certified public expenditures (CPE) whereby the hospital would expend its 
local funding for services to draw down the Federal financial participation (FFP), currently provided at a 
50% match. For the inpatient hospital FFS cost-based reimbursement, each hospital will provide its own 
CPE and receive all of the resulting Federal match. For the DSH and SNCP distributions, the CPEs of all 
the public hospitals will be used in the aggregate to draw down the Federal match. It is therefore possible 
for one hospital to receive the Federal match that results from another hospital’s CPEs. In this situation, 
the first hospital is referred to as a “recipient” hospital, while the second is referred to as a “donor” 
hospital. A recipient hospital is required to “retain” the FFP amounts resulting from donated CPEs. 
 
The Demonstration prioritizes payments so that, to the extent possible, total payments to hospitals are at 
a minimum “baseline” level. For public hospitals, the baseline level is determined and satisfied on a 
hospital-specific basis. The three funding components that will be utilized to meet each hospital’s baseline 
level are as follows: 
 
1) Medi-Cal inpatient FFS cost-based reimbursement: The FFP which is paid to the hospital represents 
approximately half of the facility-specific costs or CPE. The hospital’s amounts will fluctuate based on the 
number of facility-specific Medi-Cal patients served and the facility-specific cost-computations that will be 
adjusted on an interim and final basis.  
 
2) DSH funds: These payments are made to hospitals to take into account the uncompensated costs of 
care delivered to the uninsured, including undocumented immigrants, as well as shortfalls between Medi-
Cal psychiatric and Medi-Cal managed care payments and the cost of care delivered. The nonfederal 
share of these funds will be a combination of CPEs for these services and Intergovernmental Transfers 
(IGTs) and as such are subject to interim and final cost settlement. There is an annual fixed allotment of 
Federal DSH funds and the waiver allocates almost all of these funds to public hospitals.  
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

28 

 
Note 11 – Indigent Patient Care Funding (continued) 
 
3) SNCP distributions: Federal payments made to public hospitals and clinics for uncompensated care 
delivered to uninsured patients and for certain designated non-hospital costs, such as drugs and supplies 
for the uninsured. The nonfederal share of these funds will be based on CPEs for these services and as 
such are subject to interim and final cost settlement. Effective January 1, 2016, this program was 
replaced with the Global Payment Program, described below. 
 
Included in due to governmental agencies in the accompanying statement of net position are amounts 
payable to DHS as of June 30, 2017 of approximately $79,633,000, which represents the amounts 
received but not yet earned by the Hospital under the waiver program net of amounts earned but not yet 
received by the Hospital under the program. The Hospital recorded changes in estimates in amounts 
expected to be received resulting in reductions in net patient service revenue of approximately 
$3,600,000 during the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Global Payment Program (GPP) – Effective January 1, 2016, California’s Section 1115 Waiver Renewal 
(Renewal), called Medi-Cal 2020, was approved by CMS. As part of the Renewal, the Global Payment 
Program (GPP) establishes a statewide pool of funding for the remaining uninsured by combining federal 
disproportionate share (DSH) and uncompensated care funding where selected Designated Public 
Hospital systems, like Kern Medical, can achieve their goal of “global budget” by meeting a service 
threshold that incentivizes movement from high cost, avoidable services to providing higher value, and 
preventative services. Kern Medical recognized approximately $25,561,000 in revenue during the year 
ended June 30, 2017 for section 1115 waiver programs including GPP. As of June 30, 2017 Kern Medical 
recorded a receivable of approximately $5,833,000 for this program which is included in due to 
governmental agencies. 
 
Public Hospital Redesign and Incentives in Medi-Cal program (PRIME) – Additionally, as part of the 
Renewal, CMS authorized California to invest savings generated through the Demonstration to achieve 
critical objectives, such as improved quality of care and better care coordination through safety net 
providers. Over 5 years, up to approximately $7,464,000,000 in federal funds will be available to all 
hospitals participating in the PRIME program. As a result of participating in PRIME, Kern Medical 
recorded revenue of approximately $26,343,000 for the year ended June 30, 2017. As of June 30, 2017, 
approximately $14,368,000 receivable balance is included in the overall balance due from governmental 
agencies on the accompanying statement of net position as of June 30, 2017. 
 
Whole Person Care (WPC) – Effective June 1, 2017, CMS approved an amendment to the Special 
Terms and Conditions of California's Medi-Cal 2020 Demonstration for the Whole Person Care (WPC) 
Pilots program.  The overarching goal of the WPC Pilots is the coordination of health, behavioral health, 
and social services, as applicable, in a patient-centered manner with the goals of improved beneficiary 
health and wellbeing through more efficient and effective use of resources. WPC Pilots provide the option 
to Kern Medical to receive support to integrate care for a particularly vulnerable group of Medi-Cal 
beneficiaries who have been identified as high users of multiple systems and continue to have poor 
health outcomes. Through collaborative leadership and systematic coordination among public and private 
entities, WPC Pilot entities will identify target populations, share data between systems, coordinate care 
real time, and evaluate individual and population progress – all with the goal of providing comprehensive 
coordinated care for the beneficiary resulting in better health outcomes.  As a result of participating in 
WPC, Kern Medical recorded $15,735,000 in revenues for the year ended June 30, 2017.  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

29 

 
Note 11 – Indigent Patient Care Funding (continued) 
 
Affordable Care Act – Beginning January 1, 2014, the Affordable Care Act (ACA) provides 100% 
matching of federal medical assistance percentages (FMAP) for newly eligible Medi-Cal patients. During 
fiscal years 2017 and 2016, the Kern Medical estimated the difference between cost and interim 
payments received. As a result of the ACA cost reimbursement, the Health System recorded revenue of 
$24,965,000 for the year ended June 30, 2017, which is included in indigent patient care funding. As of 
June 30, 2017, approximately $863,000 receivable balance is included in the overall balance due from 
governmental agencies on the accompanying statement of net position as of June 30, 2017. 
 
Medi-Cal Managed Care Supplemental Programs – For newly eligible Medi-Cal patients under the ACA 
effective January 1, 2014, certain portions of the ACA provided Medi-Cal coverage for patients previously 
covered under risk sharing agreements. The majority of these beneficiaries were enrolled in managed 
Medi-Cal health plans. Due to payment mechanisms between the State and the health plans (capitation), 
an opportunity to receive supplemental funding similar to current rate range programs was made 
available to the DPHs. As a result of the supplemental funding, the Kern Medical recorded revenue of 
$17,968,000 for the year ended June 30, 2017, which is included in indigent patient care funding. As of 
June 30, 2017, approximately $18,186,000 receivable balance is included in the overall balance due from 
governmental agencies on the accompanying statement of net position as of June 30, 2017. 
 
 
Note 12 – Shared Risk and Incentive Revenues  
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, Kern Medical entered into a risk sharing agreement with a 
health plan for hospital and specialist medical services provided to members assigned to Kern Medical. 
The risk sharing agreement sets forth provisions whereby Kern Medical receives the surplus between the 
negotiated capitated amounts and the cost of the hospital and specialist medical services provided to 
members over the period of the contract. The program is administered by the health plan, and according 
to the agreement, Kern Medical is not required to fund deficits if the cost of providing services exceeds 
the capitated amounts. Estimated settlements are accrued based upon the performance of the risk-
sharing contracts in the period covered by the contract and adjusted in the future periods as final 
settlements are determined. The shared risk arrangement also contains certain provisions that may result 
in additional incentive revenue to Kern Medical if certain performance measures are met. No revenues 
were recognized during the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
 
Note 13 – Health and Welfare Realignment Act 
 
The Health and Welfare Realignment Act transferred a significant portion of the financial and 
administrative responsibilities for local health and welfare programs from the State to counties. The State 
utilizes a one-half cent sales tax increase and an increase in vehicle license fees as the sources for 
funding allocations to the counties in lieu of previous State General Fund financing. The amount to be 
received by counties is dependent upon the actual increased sales tax and vehicle license fees. Kern 
Medical’s share of these revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was approximately 
$2,086,000, which are classified as transfers in on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes 
in Net Position. 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

30 

	
Note 14 – Related Party Transactions 
 
County Funding – Kern Medical receives funds from the County as funding for providing care for 
inmates of Kern County jail and inmates of Kern County juvenile hall. The County Board of Supervisors 
approves a budgeted amount to be paid to Kern Medical. Based on the approved budgeted amount, Kern 
Medical recognized revenues of approximately $23,700,000 for the year ended June 30, 2017. These 
revenues have been classified as transfers in on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Position. As of June 30, 2017, Kern Medical recorded a receivable of approximately $1,800,000 from 
the County’s General Fund for these services. 
 
Kern Medical provides health care services to Medically Indigent Adults as provided under Section 17000 
of the Health and Safety regulations under the State of California. Reimbursement for the services is 
provided by the County’s General Fund though the use of State Health and Welfare Realignment 
Revenues. Based on the approved budgeted amount, Kern Medical recognized revenues of 
approximately $3,400,000 for the year ended June 30, 2017. These revenues have been classified as 
transfers in on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. As of June 30, 2017, 
there were no amounts due from the County’s General Fund for these services.  
 
Advances payable – Kern Medical has an agreement with the County allowing for advances from the 
County’s General Fund up to $100,000,000. As of June 30, 2017, there were no amounts due to the 
County’s General Fund.  
 
 
Note 15 – Pension Plan 
 
General Information about the Pension Plans 
 
Plan descriptions – The County of Kern’s Board of Supervisors established the Kern County Employees’ 
Retirement Association (KCERA) under the provisions of the County Employees’ Retirement Law of 1937 
(CERL) on January 1, 1945. All permanent employees of the County of Kern, Kern Medical and thirteen 
related agencies are covered by KCERA, which operates as a cost-sharing multi-employer defined 
benefit plan. It is the responsibility of KCERA to function as an investment and administrative agent for 
the County of Kern with respect to the pension plan. KCERA became independent from the County’s 
supervision and control as a result of the 1992 passage of Proposition 162, which legally established the 
independent control of the Board of Retirement. Separate audited financial statements can be obtained 
through KCERA at 11125 River Run Boulevard, Bakersfield, CA 93311. Management of the KCERA plan 
is vested with the Board of Retirement, which consists of nine members and two alternates.  
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

31 

 
Note 15 – Pension Plan (continued) 
 
The Board of Retirement establishes policy for the operation of the plan, considers applications for 
disability retirement, recommends contributions on the basis of actuarial valuations and controls 
investments of assets. Prior to January 1, 1996, the Kern County Treasurer-Tax Collector was 
responsible for financial reporting and accounting for all investments as required by Government Code 
Section 31596 et seq., as amended. On January 11, 1987, the Board of Retirement authorized the 
retirement fund to incur an administrative expense and hire an Administrator to serve at the Board of 
Retirement’s pleasure. The Administrator is responsible for the processing and computing of applications 
for retirement benefits, refunds, beneficiary allowances, death benefits, reciprocity, and any other duties 
the Board of Retirement may assign. The Administrator also acts as Secretary for all Board of Retirement 
and Committee meetings and performs other activities as directed by the Board of Retirement. The 
KCERA Plan provides for retirement, disability, death, beneficiary and cost-of-living benefits. 
 
All regular full-time employees of the County of Kern or contracting districts, including Kern Medical, who 
work 50% or more of their regular standard hours required become members of KCERA effective on the 
first day of the payroll period following the date of hire.  
 
General Tier I and Tier II members are eligible to retire at age 70 regardless of service or at age 50 with 
10 or more years of retirement service credit. A member with 30 years of service is eligible to retire 
regardless of age. General Tier III members are eligible to retire at age 70 regardless of service or at age 
52 with 5 or more years of retirement service credit. 
 
The retirement benefit the member will receive is based on age at retirement, final average compensation 
(FAC), years of retirement service credit and benefit tier. 
 
The amount of such monthly benefit is determined as a percentage of their final monthly compensation 
and is based on age at retirement and the number of years of service. The final monthly compensation is 
the monthly average of the final 12 months’ compensation, or, if the member so elects, any other 
continuous 12-month period in the member’s work history. If hired on or after January 1, 2013 the final 
compensation is measured over a period of 36 months. 
 
An annual 2% cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) for all retirees and continuance beneficiaries was adopted 
as of April 1, 1973. The liability for this annual retirement benefit increase was funded entirely from the 
unreserved fund balance until February 5, 1983. After this date (as recommended by the plan’s 
Independent Actuary, adopted by KCERA Board of Retirement, and approved by the County Board) and 
prior to fiscal year 2003, funding the 2% COLA was included in the employers’ contribution. COLA for all 
retirees and continuance beneficiaries was increased to 2.5% effective April 1, 2002. 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

32 

 
Note 15 – Pension Plan (continued) 
	
The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) adopted March 2012 between the County and its general 
employees states that all general members hired prior to the first day of payroll period 2004-16 shall start 
to pay, in the second year of the agreement, one-sixth of the employee’s normal contribution to 
retirement. In the third year, the employee’s normal contribution will increase to one-third. All general 
members hired on or after the first day of payroll period 2005-16 shall pay 100% of the new employee’s 
normal contribution to retirement. The County Administrative Office negotiated an agreement with the 
Central California Association of Public Employees (CCAPE) adopting Government Code Section 
31676.17 which provides enhanced retirement benefits, commonly known as 3% at 60, for General 
members, in August 2004. 
 
Basis of accounting – KCERA follows GASB accounting principles and reporting guidelines. The 
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and reflect the overall operations 
of KCERA. Employer and member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions 
are due, and benefits and refunds of prior contributions are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the terms of KCERA. 
 
Fair valuation of investments – Fair value for investments are derived by various methods as indicated 
in the following table: 
 
Publicly traded stocks Most recent exchange closing price. International 

securities reflect currency exchange rates in effect at 
June 30, 2016.

Short-term investments and bonds Institutional evaluations or priced at par.

OTC securities Evaluations based on good faith opinion as to what a 
buyer in the marketplace would pay for a security.

Commingled funds Net asset value provided by the investments manager.

Alternative investments Provided by the Fund manager based on the underlying 
financial statements and performance of the investments.

Private equity real estate investments Estimated based on the price that would be received to 
sell an asset in an orderly transaction between 
marketplace participants at the measurement date. 
Investments without a public market are valued based on 
assumptions made and multiple valuation techniques 
used by the investment manager.

 
Contributions – As a condition of participation under the provisions of CERL, members are required to 
contribute to KCERA a percentage of their salaries. Member contribution rates for fiscal year 2016 ranged 
from 4.45% to 18.48% and were applied to the member’s base pay plus pensionable special pays. For 
general members hired prior to 2013, contribution rates were determined by benefit tier and KCERA entry 
age. The contribution rates of general members who first joined KCERA on or after January 1, 2013 are 
at least 50% of the normal cost rate. Furthermore, the rate of members integrated with Social Security is 
reduced by one-third on the first $161 of biweekly salary. 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

33 

 
Note 15 – Pension Plan (continued) 
	
Interest is credited to member contributions semi-annually on June 30 and December 31, in accordance 
with Article 5.5 of the CERL. Member contributions and credited interest are refundable upon termination 
of membership. 
 
Each year, an actuarial valuation is performed for the purpose of determining the funded ratio of the 
retirement plan and the employer contributions that are necessary to pay benefits accruing to KCERA 
members that were not otherwise funded by member contributions or investment earnings. The employer 
contribution rates are actuarially determined by using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost method. 
Employer rates include the “normal cost” and an annual amortization payment toward the Plan’s 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates determined in each actuarial valuation (as of June 
30) apply to the fiscal year beginning 12 months after the valuation date. Employer rates for fiscal year 
2017 ranged from 31.83% to 33.43% of covered payroll. Contributions to the pension plan from Kern 
Medical were approximately $26,000,000 for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Actuarial assumptions – The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions. Total pension liability represents the portion of the 
actuarial present value projected benefit payments attributable to past periods of service for current and 
inactive employees. 
 

Inflation 3.25%

Salary increases 4.25 to 9.25%, including inflation

COLA increases 2.50 % (actual increases contingent upon CPI increases 
with a 2.50% maximum)

Administrative Expenses 0.90 % of payroll allocated to both the employer and
member based on the components of the total contribution
rate (before expenses) for the employer and member

 
The total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2016. The actuarial assumptions for the June 30, 2016 actuarial report were based on the results of an 
experience study for the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2013.  
 
The Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost method used in KCERA’s annual actuarial valuation has also been 
applied in measuring the service cost and TPL with one exception. For purposes of measuring the service 
cost and TPL, KCERA has reflected the same plan provisions used in determining the member’s actuarial 
present value of projected benefits. This is different from the version of this method applied in KCERA’s 
annual funding valuation, where the normal cost and actuarial accrued liability are determined as if the 
current benefit accrual rate had always been in effect.  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

34 

 
Note 15 – Pension Plan (continued) 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns net of pension plan investment 
expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. This data is combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentages and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and projected arithmetic 
real rates of return for each major asset class, after deducting inflation but before investment expenses, 
used in the derivation of the long-term expected investment rate of return assumptions are summarized 
below: 
 

Target Long-term Expected
Allocation Real Rate of Return

Large Cap U.S. Equity 19.00 % 5.92 %
Small/Mid Cap U.S. Equity 4.00 6.49
Developed International Equity 18.00 6.90
Emerging Markets Equity 4.00 8.34
Core Bonds 18.00 0.73
High Yield Bonds 4.00 2.67
Emerging Market Debt 4.00 4.00
TIPS 3.00 0.35
Real Estate 5.00 4.96
Commodities 6.00 4.35
Hedge Funds 10.00 4.30
Private Equity 5.00 8.10

 
 
Discount rate – The discount rates used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50% as of June 30, 
2016. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rates assumed member contributions 
would be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions would be made at rates 
equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.  
 
For this purpose, only employee and employer contributions intended to fund benefits for current plan 
members and their beneficiaries are included. Projected employer contributions intended to fund the 
service costs for future plan members and their beneficiaries, as well as projected contributions from 
future plan members, are not included. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2016.  
 
The discount rate assumptions have been developed without taking into consideration any impact of the 
50/50 allocation of future excess earnings between the retirement and Supplement Retirement Benefit 
Reserve (SRBR) asset pools.  
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

35 

 
Note 15 – Pension Plan (continued) 
 
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate – The following presents the 
net pension liability as of June 30, 2016, calculated using a discount rate of 7.50%, and what the net 
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one point lower (6.50%) or one 
point higher (8.50%) than the current rate: 
 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
Kern Medical's proportionate share 

of the net pension liability 435,423,989$   329,935,445$      242,604,158$   
 

Pension fund fiduciary net position – Detailed information about the pension fund’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued KCERA annual report. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 
 
Kern Medical’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. As of June 30, 2017, Kern Medical reported a liability of $329,935,445 for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date. The net pension liability for each membership class is the total pension liability minus the Plan’s 
Fiduciary Net Position. The total pension liability for each membership class is obtained from internal 
valuation results based on the actual participants in each membership class. The Plan’s Fiduciary Net 
Position for each membership class was estimated by adjusting the valuation value of assets for each 
membership class by the ratio of the total KCERA Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (excluding SRBR) to total 
KCERA valuation value of assets. Based on this methodology, any non-valuation reserves are allocated 
amongst the membership classes based on each membership class’ valuation value of assets. Kern 
Medical's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of Kern Medical's long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating County 
departments and agencies, actuarially determined. As of June 30, 2017, Kern Medical's proportion was 
15.05 percent, which was a decrease of 2.02 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 
 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

36 

 
Note 15 – Pension Plan (continued) 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, Kern Medical recognized pension expense of $30,519,077. 
Pension expense represents the change in net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted 
for actual contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial 
gain/loss, actuarial assumptions or methods, and plan benefits. As of June 30, 2017, Kern Medical 
reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                      (20,011,206)$    
Changes of assumptions 10,782,307       -                        
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 30,611,259       -                        
Changes in proportion and differences between Kern Medical

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 206,164             (2,227,720)        
Kern Medical contributions subsequent to the measurement date 30,152,915       -                        

Total 71,752,645$     (22,238,926)$    

Deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of changes 
to NPL to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. $30,152,934 reported as 
deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be 
recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended June 30:
2018 4,032,676                    
2019 4,032,676                    
2020 7,509,086                    
2021 4,061,497                    
2022 (275,151)                     

19,360,785$                

 
 
 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

37 

 
Note 15 – Pension Plan (continued) 
 
The changes in net pension liability obligation are as follows as of June 30, 2017:  
 
Beginning net pension liability, as restated (see Note 2) 307,308,399$     
Pension expense 30,519,077         
Employer contributions (26,222,853)        
Deferred outflows of resources - change in Assumptions 10,782,307         
Deferred inflows of resources - net difference between projected
    and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments 29,581,277         
Deferred outflows of resources - change in proportion and differences 
   between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions 206,164               
Deferred inflows of resources - Differences between expected and actual experience (20,011,206)        
Deferred inflows of resources - Changes in proportion and differences between 
    employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions (2,227,720)          

Ending net pension liability 329,935,445$     

 
Note 16 – Physician Employee Retirement Plan 
 
Kern Medical, through the County, contributes to the Kern County Physician Employee Retirement Plan 
(the Plan), a defined contribution plan. The Plan covers salaried physicians in the employment of the 
County, except physicians employed under Civil Service and physicians employed and paid on an hourly 
basis. Kern Medical contributions for each plan year (as defined in the Plan Document) under the 
amended and restated Plan Document shall be as follows: Kern Medical shall contribute as Kern 
Medical’s required contribution the sum of Seventeen Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($17,500) for the 
account of Core Physician for each completed Plan Year of service (as defined in the Plan Document) by 
Core Physician. Participants are allowed to make voluntary contributions to the Plan. All amounts 
contributed are vested immediately. The Kern Medical contributed $1,147,678 to the Plan for fiscal year 
ended 2017. Audited financial statements for the Plan may be obtained through the Kern County Auditor-
Controller-County Clerk, 1115 Truxtun Avenue, Bakersfield, CA 93301.  
 
 
Note 17 – Self-Insurance Programs 
 
Medical malpractice claims – Kern Medical is self-insured for medical malpractice claims for the first 
$2,500,000 per incident with a $10,000,000 total maximum policy limitation. Kern Medical also maintains 
excess liability coverage for claims in excess of total maximum policy limitation. Insurance coverage is on 
a claims-made basis.  
 
 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

38 

 
Note 17 – Self-Insurance Programs (continued) 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require a health care provider to 
accrue the expense of its share of malpractice claim costs, if any, for any reported and unreported 
incidents of potential improper professional service occurring during the year by estimating the probable 
ultimate costs of the incidents. Annual estimated provisions are accrued based on Kern Medical’s past 
experience as well as other considerations, including the nature of the claim or incident and relevant trend 
factors. Losses from asserted and unasserted claims identified under Kern Medical’s incident reporting 
system are actuarially determined based on Kern Medical’s past experience as well as other 
considerations, including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. These unpaid 
claim liabilities were discounted at 4.0% in 2017 to account for the time value of money to determine the 
current estimated liabilities as reflected below. It is reasonably possible that this estimate could change 
materially in the near term. 
 
Kern Medical has unlimited retention on most open policy years. Since July 1, 1998, Kern Medical has 
purchased excess insurance to cover annual claims. Excess insurance was maintained for claims based 
on the following policy years: 
 
A reconciliation for professional liability claims (including claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)) for the 
current fiscal year and the past fiscal year is as follows: 
 

Balance, beginning of the year 4,279,059$          
Current year claims incurred and changes in estimates
for claims incurred in prior periods 1,630,872            
Claims and expenses paid (5,931)                  

Balance, end of year 5,904,000$          

 
 
Workers’ compensation claims – Under the California Unemployment and Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance provisions, the Kern Medical has elected to pay the actual claims filed for unemployment and 
workers’ compensation benefits. Reinsurance policies have been purchased by Kern Medical for claims 
incurred above selected retention levels for a small portion of enrolled members. The liability associated 
with the self-insurance policies of the Kern Medical is based upon Kern Medical’s historical trend analysis 
and includes amounts for claims incurred but not reported.  
 
A reconciliation for workers’ compensation claims (including IBNR claims) for the current fiscal year and 
the past fiscal year is as follows: 
 

Balance, beginning of the year 7,748,000$          
Current year claims incurred and changes in estimates
for claims incurred in prior periods 130,638               
Claims and expenses paid (75,638)                

Balance, end of year 7,803,000$          

 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

39 

 
Note 18 – Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits 
 
Plan description – In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 15, the County and its Special 
Districts (including Kern Medical) provide post-retirement health care benefits in accordance with union 
contracts and Board of Supervisors’ order. There are two programs, which contribute funding for retirees’ 
health insurance. The Retiree Health Premium Supplement Program (RHPSP) is available to employees 
who: a) elect to participate or were required to participate, b) retire on or after July 1, 1990, c) are 
between the ages of 50 and 64, and d) have at least 20 years of continuous County service as a 
permanent employee. The supplement amount is permanently fixed once determined and is, depending 
on years of service, equal to 50% to 100% of the active employee monthly health premium for a single 
individual at the time of retirement.  
 
The Retiree Health Stipend (RHS) is available to employees who choose continuous health coverage 
upon retirement. As of June 30, 2017, there were approximately 2,784 retirees receiving the stipend. The 
monthly stipend paid on behalf of each retiree is a maximum of $39.75 for single coverage, $53.69 for 
two-party coverage, and $61.50 for family coverage, limited to the cost of the plan selected for 2017. Both 
the RHPSP and RHS are single-employer benefit plans.  
 
Funding policies (extracted from County CAFR) – County, Special Districts and employee 
contributions fund the RHPSP and County contributions fund all of the RHS. As of the June 30, 2014 
actuary report, the RHPSP was paid on the ARC basis. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the 
County entered into a postemployment health benefit (OPEB) trust with the Public Agency Retirement 
Services (PARS) to accumulate resources to fund future benefit payments of the RHPSP and RHS. The 
employee contribution for RHPSP is 2.12% of covered payroll for the majority of the employee union 
contracts. The overall contribution rate is determined to meet the overall rate determined by an 
independent actuary. The contribution rate is based on the annual required contribution (ARC), an 
amount that is actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.  
 

RHPSP RHS Total

Annual required contribution 9,183,000$      2,738,000$      11,921,000$  
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,489,000        325,000           1,814,000      
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1,655,000)       (360,000)          (2,015,000)     

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 9,017,000        2,703,000        11,720,000    
Contributions made (10,278,000)     (287,000)          (10,565,000)  

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation (1,261,000)       2,416,000        1,155,000      
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 33,094,000      7,224,000        40,318,000    

Net OPEB obligation - end of year 31,833,000$    9,640,000$      41,473,000$  

Kern Medical allocation percentage 10.13%

Net OPEB obligation - end of year - Kern Medical portion 4,201,203$    

 
 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

40 

 
Note 18 – Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits (continued) 
 
Funded status and funding progress (extracted from County CAFR) – As of June 30, 2016, the most 
recent actuarial valuation date, the RHPSP and RHS were funded 58.33% and 5.21%, respectively. The 
actuarial accrued liability for RHPSP benefits was $110,247,000, and the actuarial value of the assets 
was $64,304,000, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $45,594,000. The 
actuarial accrued liability for RHS benefits was $25,492,000, and the actuarial value of the assets was 
$1,328,000, resulting in an UAAL of $24,164,000. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $506,924,000 for both plans, and the ratio of the UAAL to the 
covered payroll was 9.06% for RHPSP and 4.77% for RHS.  
 
In fiscal year 2017 contributions for the RHPSP were $10,278,000, $4,293,000 of which was from the 
County and $5,785,000 was from employee contributions. The RHS is funded by County contributions of 
approximately $168 per active employee per year, which totaled $287,000 for the year ended June 30, 
2017. 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, annual investment return, mortality, inflation and the healthcare 
cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the ARC of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that 
shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 
Actuarial methods and assumptions (extracted from county CAFR) – Projections of benefits for 
financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer 
and plan members) and include types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical 
pattern of sharing of benefits costs between the employer and the plan members to that point. The 
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term 
perspective of the calculations. 
 
In the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations for RHPSP and the RHS, the projected unit credit actuarial cost 
method was used. The amortization period is 20 years closed on a level dollar basis. The actuarial 
assumptions include a 6.5% investment rate of return, a medical premiums trend rate for the supplement 
of 6.50% in 2017/2018, grading down 0.25% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.00% and 0.00% for the 
stipend. 
 
Per the June 30, 2016 actuary report the RHPSP ARC was $9,183,000, or 1.81% of the estimated annual 
covered payroll, the RHS was $2,738,000, or 0.54% of estimated annual covered payroll.  This included 
the normal cost for the year for current active employees of $4,707,000, and $3,915,000 for UAAL 
amortization.  The County’s contribution to the RHPSP for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was 
$9,867,000.  The County’s contribution to the RHS for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was $287,000. 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

41 

 
Note 19 – Deferred Compensation 
 
Kern Medical offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created by the County in accordance 
with IRC Section 457. The plan, available to all County employees, permits them to defer a portion of their 
salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, 
retirement, or unforeseeable emergency. Amounts accumulated under the plan have been invested in 
several investment options at the direction of the employee. 
 
In accordance with requirements of IRC Section 457 and the Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996, 
the assets in the plan were transferred to a trust as approved by the County Board of Supervisors. The 
trust holds the plan assets for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. 
 
Completed financial statements for the Deferred Compensation Plan may be obtained from the Office of 
the Kern County Treasurer-Tax Collector located at 1115 Truxtun Avenue, Bakersfield, CA 93301. 
 
 
Note 20 – Donated Services 
 
Kern Medical receives donated services from unpaid volunteers assisting in the auxiliary coffee shop and 
gift shop. Additionally, the hospital receives donated services from a variety of unpaid individuals who are 
under the work release program and are required to complete hours of manual labor at the hospital. No 
amounts have been recognized in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Position for those services, since the criteria for recognition of such volunteer effort was not met 
under FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 605-10-15.  
 
 
Note 21 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Litigation – Kern Medical is the subject of certain claims and assessments arising in the normal course of 
its operations. In certain instances, these matters have been tried and awards have been submitted by 
the respective juries and/or courts.  
 
The County, along with seven other counties, is the plaintiff in a case regarding Medi-Cal outpatient 
payment rates for current and prior services. The complaint is that the SDHS did not comply with certain 
Federal and State requirements in setting current and prior outpatient payment rates. The case was 
settled during the 2005 year in the County’s favor and Kern Medical received one half of the settlement 
amount. The other half is contingent upon the Federal government’s provision of Federal financial 
participation for the settlement. Therefore, Kern Medical has not accrued any amounts as a result of this 
settlement. 
 
Operating leases – Kern Medical leases certain office space under operating lease agreements. Total 
lease expense amounted to approximately $2,900,000 for the year ended June 30, 2017. Minimum future 
lease payments and sublease rental income offsets on existing non-cancelable leases as of June 30, 
2017 are as follows: 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 
	

42 

 
Note 21 – Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 
 

Minimum
Future Lease

Payments
2018 1,439,526$        
2019 1,227,985          
2020 1,249,261          
2021 1,276,458          
2022 1,169,817          

Total minimum lease payments 6,363,047$        

 
Regulatory matters – The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, 
state and local governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, 
matters such as licensure, accreditation, governmental health care program requirements and 
reimbursements for patient services. Government activity has continued with respect to investigations and 
allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care 
providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care 
programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments 
for patient services previously billed. Management believes that Kern Medical is in compliance with fraud 
and abuse, as well as other applicable government laws and regulations. Compliance with such laws and 
regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as regulatory action 
unknown or unasserted at this time. 
 
In addition, Kern Medical is subject to changes in government legislation that could impact Medicare and 
Medi-Cal payment levels and is also subject to increased levels of managed care penetration and 
changes in payer patterns that may impact the level and timing of payments for services rendered. 
 
Final determination of amounts earned under prospective payment and cost reimbursement activities is 
subject to review by appropriate governmental authorities or their agents. In the opinion of management, 
adequate provision has been made for any adjustments that could result from such reviews. 
 
 
Note 22 – Audit of Federal Disproportionate Share Payments 
 
The DSH program was established in 1981 as part of the Medicaid program and requires State Medicaid 
agencies to make additional payments to hospitals serving disproportionate numbers of low-income 
patients with special needs. Effective July 1, 1997, the program was amended to limit DSH payments to 
100 percent of the amount of incurred uncompensated care costs (UCC) with a special provision that 
allowed payments of up to 175 percent of UCC to those public hospitals qualifying as “high DSH” 
hospitals in the State of California. 
 
In 2001, the Office of Inspector General (OIG) of the U.S. Department of Health of Human Services 
conducted an audit of DSH payments to Kern Medical in order to determine that those payments did not 
exceed the hospital specific limit for fiscal year 1998. In September 2002, the OIG issued its final report, 
claiming total overpayments to Kern Medical of approximately $38,700,000, of which approximately 
$19,400,000 represents the Federal share.  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority  
Notes to Financial Statements 

	

43 

 
Note 22 – Audit of Federal Disproportionate Share Payments (continued) 
 
The report states that Federal law requires the State to recover overpayments, and State law requires 
that overpayments determined by audit or Federal disallowance should be recouped by the State. 
However, in its conclusions, the report does not specifically request Kern Medical to refund the 
overpayment.  
 
The SDHS and Kern Medical generally disagree with the findings of the OIG and maintain that the DSH 
payments were properly paid in accordance with the approved State plan. Furthermore, both the State 
and Kern Medical assert that the governing statute, OBRA 1993, does not require retrospective 
settlement, as these settlements are extremely disruptive and counter-productive to the purposes of the 
DSH program. No provision has been made in these financial statements to repay the amounts claimed 
by the OIG in its report. 
 
California State Department of Health Service (DHS) has completed its audit and reconciliation of the 
2005-2006 Medi-Cal funds and noted that Kern Medical was overpaid in the total amount of $2,116,022. 
Kern Medical paid this amount back to DHS on October 9, 2013. Kern Medical hired a third party 
consultant to evaluate its outstanding receivables related to the remaining years subject to audit from 
2006-2007 through 2013-2014 noting Kern Medical is estimated to have been overpaid by DHS in the 
amount of approximately $41,100,000 over the course of these stated 8 years. The amount has been 
recorded in due to governmental agencies in the accompanying Statement of Net Position and is subject 
to audit by DHS. 
 
 
Note 23 – Construction and Seismic Standards 
 
Under current California laws, Kern Medical’s facilities must comply with specific provisions related to 
structural and nonstructural seismic standards. These laws generally required hospitals to retrofit, 
remodel or upgrade several buildings before 2013, subject to legislative changes and certain available 
exemptions. Kern Medical received an extension to comply by 2019. Kern Medical is currently working on 
improvements to noncompliant buildings in order to receive exemptions available under current legislation 
through 2030. The cost estimates associated with this compliance have not been completed but will likely 
be significant. 
 
 



	

	
	

Required Supplementary Information 
	
	



	

See accompanying report of independent auditors.		 44	

	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Schedule of Funding Progress for The County of Kern 
	
	

UAAL as a 
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Percentage of 

Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL (UAAL) Funded Covered Annual
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (b-a) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (c) (a/b) (d) (c/d)

6/30/2010 -$                   133,583$         133,583$       0.00% 481,701$         27.73%
6/30/2012 -                     132,528           132,528         0.00% 490,762           27.00%
6/30/2012 -                     132,528           132,528         0.00% 512,702           25.85%
6/30/2014 46,496           108,976           62,480           42.67% 501,431           12.46%
6/30/2014 46,496           108,976           62,480           42.67% 501,431           12.46%
6/30/2016 64,304           110,247           45,943           58.33% 506,924           9.06%

UAAL as a 
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Percentage of 

Actuarial Value of Accrued AAL (UAAL) Funded Covered Annual
Valuation Assets Liability (AAL) (b-a) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (c) (a/b) (d) (c/d)

6/30/2010 -$                   16,379$           16,379$         0.00% 487,323$         3.36%
6/30/2010 -                     16,379             16,379           0.00% 481,701           3.40%
6/30/2012 -                     36,525             36,525           0.00% 490,762           7.44%
6/30/2012 -                     36,525             36,525           0.00% 512,702           7.12%
6/30/2014 221                28,885             28,664           0.77% 501,431           5.72%
6/30/2014 221                28,885             28,664           0.77% 501,431           5.72%
6/30/2016 1,328             25,492             24,164           5.21% 506,924           4.77%

Retiree Health Premium Supplement Program (RHPSP)*

Retiree Health Stipend (RHS)*

* These schedules represent the entire County of Kern's (the County) benefits and obligations. The Medical Center's benefits and 
obligations are allocated as a portion from the County. 

(Amounts in thousands)

(Amounts in thousands)

	
	 	



	

45 See accompanying report of independent auditors. 

	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 
Actuarial Assumptions and Methodology for The County of Kern 
	
	
Retiree Health Premium  Supplement Program (RHPSP)
Retiree Health Stipend

Valuation Date: 6/30/2016

Investment Return: 6.5%

General Inflation Rate: Not used in calculating liability

Mortality: 

Medical Plan Premiums 
(Trend) Stipend: 6.50% in 2017/18, grading down 0.25% per year to an ultimate rate of 5.00%

Retiree Health Premium Supplement Program (RHPSP) Only

Monthly Premium Contributions $441.04 - $882.07 depending on years of service

Other Factors for Monthly Premium Contributions:

20 years 441.04
21 years 529.24
22 years 617.45
23 years 705.66
24 years 793.86
25 years 882.07

Retiree Health Stipend Only

Monthly Premium Contributions for Future Retirees: Coverage Stipend

Single-Retiree Only 39.75
Two-Party (retiree plus dependent) 53.69
Family (retiree plus two or more 

dependents) 61.50

Above premium is for new retirees who are under age 65 
and completed 20 or more years of continuous service. 
Employees who retire with a minimum of 20 years of 
continuous service only receive a percentage as follows:

Healthy -  RP 2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2023 set 
forward one year for males and females for General members and set back one year for 
Safety Members.

Disabled -  RP 2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2023 set 
forward eight years for General and four years for Safety members. 

	 	



	

See accompanying report of independent auditors.		 46	

	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Schedule of Contributions for The County of Kern 
	
	

Fiscal Year Percentage 
Ended Annual of Cost Net OPEB

June 30, RHPSP Cost Contributed Obligation 

2013 13,385$               100% 35,015$               
2014 15,187                 97% 35,449                 
2015 10,257                 104% 35,031                 
2016 10,182                 119% 33,094                 
2017 9,017                   114% 31,833                 

 

Fiscal Year Percentage 
Ended Annual of Cost Net OPEB

June 30, RHS Cost Contributed Obligation 

2013 3,486$                 34% 2,311$                 
2014 3,490                   64% 3,584                   
2015 3,162                   44% 5,339                   
2016 3,150                   40% 7,224                   
2017 2,703                   11% 9,640                   

Retiree Health Premium Supplement Program (RHPSP)*

Retiree Health Stipend (RHS)*

* These schedules represent the entire County of Kern's (the County) benefits and 
obligations. The Medical Center's benefits and obligations are allocated as a portion 
from the County.

(Amounts in thousands)

(Amounts in thousands)

	
	
	

	 	



	

47 See accompanying report of independent auditors. 

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 
Schedule of The Proportionate Share  
of the Net Pension Liability for the County of Kern 
	
	

Reporting  Date for 
Employer under GASB 68 

as of June 30

Actuarially 
Determined 
Contribution

Kern Medical's 
Contribution

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess)

Medical 
Center's 
Covered-

Contributions as a 
percentage of 

covered-employee 
2015 34,286,046$   34,286,046$   -$               77,008,989$    44.52%
2016 30,093,110$   30,093,110$   -$               81,925,123$    36.73%
2017 26,222,853$   26,222,853$   -$               78,433,199$    33.43%

	
	 	



	

See accompanying report of independent auditors.		 48	

	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Pension Plan 

Schedule of Contributions for the County of Kern 
	
	

Reporting Date for 
Employer under GASB 

68 as of June 30

Proportion of the 
Net Pension 

Liability

Proportionate 
Share of Net 

Pension 
Liability

County's 
Covered-
employee 

Payroll

Proportionate Share of the 
Net Pension Liability as  

Percentage of its Covered-
employee Payroll

Plan's Fiduciary Net 
Position as a 

Percentage of the Total 
Pension Liability

2014 16.18% 343,748,412$  75,331,439$  456.31% 59.59%
2015 15.97% 330,492,938$  77,008,989$  429.16% 63.49%
2016 17.17% 345,262,534$  81,925,123$  421.44% 62.20%
2017 15.06% 329,935,454$  78,433,199$  420.66% 59.82%

	
	
	
	
	
	



	

49 

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
	
	
The Board of Governors 
Kern County Hospital Authority 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Kern County Hospital 
Authority (Kern Medical), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise Kern Medical’s basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 21, 2017. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Kern Medical’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Kern Medical’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Kern Medical’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatement on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify deficiencies in internal control, 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as findings 2016-01, 2016-02, 2016-
03 and 2016-04, that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 



	

50 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Kern Medical’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Audit Standards. 
 
Kern Medical’s Response to Findings 

Kern Medical’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and responses. Kern Medical’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Kern Medical’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Kern Medical’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Los Angeles, California 
December 21, 2017 
 



	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 

June 30, 2017  
	

51 

	
Finding 2017-01 Journal Entry Process 
 
Condition 

During fiscal year 2017, Kern Medical did not have a consistent process to document the review of all 
journal entries and supporting documentation by personnel at a level above the preparer. Additionally, all 
personnel in the accounting department are able to post journal entries into the system. Without complete 
separation of duties, particularly between the approval and recording of adjusting journal entries, 
transactions may be inaccurately recorded in the general ledger through a journal entry and not be 
detected. The potential result would be that the financial statements may be materially misstated. 
 
Recommendation 

We recommend that a process be implemented to properly document review of all journal entries and the 
supporting documents for all entries posted. We recommend that the list of personnel with the ability to 
post journal entries be reviewed and a policy implemented to limit access to only the appropriate 
personnel. We recommend that the reviewer of journal entries does not have access to post entries into 
the system. 
 
Management Response 

Management agrees with the auditor’s recommendation regarding the preparation and review of all 
journal entries. Policies and procedures have been implemented that require adequate supporting 
documentation to be attached to all journal entries. These policies and procedures also require that 
personnel a level above the staff preparing the journal entries to review the journal entries. Management 
will consider the recommendation to have the Information Systems Department block the ability to post 
journal entries for personnel that review journal entries.  New PeopleSoft accounting software that was 
recently implemented by Kern Medical will allow journal entries to be accounted for more easily each 
month.  Electronic records of all journal entries with proper support documentation and proof of 
management review attached will be saved and available for management or auditor review each month.  
This software will also be setup to only allow appropriate accounting staff with the access needed to post 
journal entries to the general ledger. 
 
Finding 2017-02 Timely Reconciliation of General Ledger Accounts 
 
Condition 

Accounting tasks such as monthly reconciliations play a key role in proving the accuracy of accounting 
data and information included in interim financial statements. During fiscal year 2017, Kern Medical did 
not consistently complete monthly general ledger account reconciliations on a timely manner. In addition, 
there was an instance of no evidence of the reconciliation being reviewed by personnel at a level above 
the preparer of the reconciliation. 
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 
June 30, 2017  
	

52 

 
Recommendation 

In order to provide more accurate and timely accounting information, we strongly recommend that Kern 
Medical establish more effective review and reconciliation policies and procedures as a customary part of 
the accounting process. This would involve monthly reconciliations of all accounts, and performing more 
frequent reviews of the general ledger throughout the year, including making any necessary adjustments. 
Monthly general ledger account reconciliations should be prepared timely and personnel at a level above 
the preparer should review the reconciliations and the related support on a timely basis. 

 
Management Response 

Management agrees with the auditor’s recommendation that account reconciliations should be completed 
on a monthly basis. Policies and procedures have been implemented that require the monthly 
reconciliation of all balance sheet accounts. Kern Medical is adhering to these policies and procedures 
during the current fiscal year.  Kern Medical’s recent implementation of new PeopleSoft accounting 
software will allow the monthly financial close process to be completed more quickly and for the 
corresponding balance sheet account reconciliations to be completed on a timelier basis each month. 
 
Finding 2017-03 Bank Account Reconciliation 
 
Condition 

During the audit, we noted that bank statements for Kern Medical’s various accounts were not reconciled 
to the general ledger. Most of the problems generally encountered within the area of cash can be avoided 
if a proper system of checks and balances is incorporated into the organization’s procedures. 
 
Recommendation 

We recommend that all of the bank accounts be reconciled monthly to the general ledger and that all 
reconciling items be promptly investigated and adjusted with adequate explanations. This practice would 
greatly enforce the checks and balances necessary for strong controls over cash. 
 
Management Response 

Management agrees with the recommendation to reconcile bank accounts to the general ledger on a 
monthly basis.  There are policies and procedures currently in place requiring these reconciliations. 
However, due to a shortage of staff and accounting software system limitations, the reconciliations have 
not always been completed on a timely basis.  New PeopleSoft accounting software has been 
implemented and became effective on October 1, 2017.  In addition, an accounting staff member has also 
been put in place to focus on cash reconciliations as their main priority.  These changes should allow 
Kern Medical to stay current with their accounting for cash activity.   
  



	

Kern County Hospital Authority 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 

June 30, 2017  
	

53 

 
Finding 2017-04 Purchasing and Disbursements Control Activities 
 
Condition 

During our disbursement control testing, we noted there were no restrictions on the number of goods or 
services that a manager could purchase. We also noted that there were few instances where there was 
no evidence that managerial level personnel approved the purchase order after the preparer’s request. 
Lastly, we noted two instances where there was no evidence of who performed the three-way match of 
the purchase order, receiving documents, and invoices and entered the information into the system. A 
strong and efficient system of controls over purchasing and disbursements is critically important to 
preventing the possibility of not only unapproved, but also fraudulent purchases. 
 
Recommendation 

We recommend that Kern Medical update the purchasing policy that monitors the number of goods that a 
manager could approve. We also recommend that managers/supervisors approve each purchase order to 
ensure accuracy and validity of the purchase. We recommend the AP department to collect all of the 
necessary supporting documents to perform a three-way match and for preparer and approver to sign-off 
as part of evidence of completion. These procedures will create an effective system of checks and 
balances in purchasing and disbursements cycles reducing the possibility of unauthorized purchases, and 
improving control over purchases and disbursements.  
 
Management Response 

Management agrees with the auditor’s recommendation that purchasing policies should be updated and 
adhered to each month.  Several policies and procedures supporting the procurement to payment system 
were drafted and implemented upon the transfer of Kern Medical Center to the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, effective July 1, 2016.  Also, throughout fiscal year 2017 Kern Medical engaged consultants 
that specialize in the procurement to payment process for hospitals.  The consultants worked closely with 
Kern Medical Materials Management and Accounts Payable staff to revise processes as needed to make 
sure that the entire procurement to payment process conforms to the requirements in the policies.  This 
work included strengthening system infrastructure to support the new PeopleSoft software system that 
was implemented throughout fiscal year 2017 and became a live, usable system for Kern Medical 
effective October 1, 2017.  The materials management, supply chain, accounts payable, asset 
management, and general ledger modules within the PeopleSoft software system will allow Kern Medical 
to properly account for the purchase and payment for goods and services much more accurately and 
efficiently than in prior years.      

 
 



 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

February 21, 2018 
 

SUBJECT:  Update on Kern Medical’s Whole Person Care pilot program. 

 

Requested Action:  Receive and File 

 

Summary:  

 

An update on Kern Medical’s Whole Person Care pilot program after its first year of operation. 

 

 



Whole-Person Care
Program Year 2 Update



Program Overview

• Component of Medi-Cal 2020, California’s Section 
1115 Medicaid Waiver

• Designed to improve health outcomes for high-risk, 
high-utilizing patients through coordinated delivery of 
physical and behavioral health and social services



Partners

• Kern Health Systems
• Health Net
• Kern County Probation
• Kern Behavioral Health and Recovery Services
• Kern County Sheriff’s Department
• Kern County Aging and Adult Services
• Kern County Employers’ Training Resource
• Kern County Public Health
• Kern County Department of Human Services
• Golden Empire Gleaners
• Housing Authority of the County of Kern
• Community Connection for Childcare



Eligibility Criteria

• Medi-Cal Beneficiary

• 2+ chronic disease diagnoses

• >1 inpatient stay in 12 month time period
And/Or

• 3+ ER visits in 12 month time period

• Recently Incarcerated

• Homeless/At-risk-of homelessness



Program Update

• 89 Enrollees since August 2017
• Dedicated Physician – Dr. Katayun Saadai
• Dedicated Behavioral Health Staff
• 4 Care Coordinators



Program Education

• WPC Core Education
• Health Literacy
• Hospital Relapse Prevention
• Job Readiness Assessment
• Household Budgeting
• Life Skills
• Basic Nutrition Education

• Employment Education
• ServSafe Food Handlers 

Certificate
• Resume Builder & Interviewing
• Job Sustainability & 

Advancement
• GED Program – Partner with 

Bakersfield Adult School

• Post Incarceration
• Crime Theory – Breaking the 

Cycle
• Anger Management
• Coping Skill
• Co-Dependency
• Rebuilding Relationships with 

Family and Friends
• Recidivism Reduction

• Housing
• Interacting with community 

resources
• Budgeting and Utilities
• Working with Landlords
• Household Management



Program Successes

• 18 ER visits avoided
• 1 WPC Education Graduate
• Comprehensive Diabetes Care  A1c <8 66%
• Controlling High Blood Pressure 63%
• Depression Remission 50%



Patient Successes

• Patient discharged from community hospital assigned a 
social worker but social worker was unable to link patient 
to their desired services

• The experience caused the patient to be skeptical when 
presented with the WPC program, and resistant to the 
interventions offered

• WPC Care Coordinator persuaded patient to give 
program a try, explaining it was voluntary and the 
patient could disenroll at any time

• Patient quickly realized that WPC program followed 
through with services and resources needed

• Patient has now completed all core education, and is 
now an advocate for the program



Patient Successes

• Patient was 2 days post-surgery experiencing 
complications and called care coordinator on way to 
Emergency Room

• Care coordinator diverted patient from ER to surgery 
clinic and coordinated with clinical supervisor to have 
patient seen immediately

• Patient received the appropriate care, addressing the 
complications while avoiding Emergency Room visit.

• Patient’s complications were not appropriate for the ER 
and concerns were safely and appropriately addressed 
within clinic.



Patient Successes

• Patient with pre-existing diagnosis of cancer was 
enrolled in WPC August 2017

• Patient received extensive support from WPC’s 
interdisciplinary team

• Although patient’s diagnosis was terminal, behavioral 
health and care coordinators continued to assist the 
patient through their medical and social needs

• After the patient’s passing, the family reached out to 
their care coordinator, requesting their presence at the 
funeral, and expressing their gratitude for all of the 
support provided







 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and 2017 Actuarial Valuation from 

Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association (KCERA) 
 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 

Summary:   
 

At its December 2017 meeting, the Board of Retirement approved KCERA’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) and its Actuarial Valuation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  KCERA has 
requested that both enclosed reports be placed on your Board’s consent agenda. 
 
The CAFR provides insight into the retirement association.  The report is divided into introductory, 
financial, investment, actuarial and statistical sections. 
 
The actuarial valuation, prepared by The Segal Group, includes information about future employer and 
employee contribution rates, capital market assumptions, plan experience changes and other plan 
information.  The actuary determined the contribution rates necessary to fully fund the plan over the 
amortization periods specified in KCERA’s funding policy.   
 
On January 23, 2018, the Kern County Board of Supervisors adopted the employer and employee 
contribution rates for the retirement system for FY 2018‐19, as recommended by KCERA and The Segal 
Group in the actuarial valuation.  The impact of the new actuarial assumptions will be phased in over a 
three‐year period.  Based on the updated contribution rates, the fiscal impact to Kern Medical is 
expected to be in the range of an additional $974,000 to $1,019,000 per year.   
 
Therefore, IT IS RECOMMENDED that your Board receive and file the reports. 
 



11125 River Run Boulevard  Bakersfield, California 93311  www.kcera.org 
Tel (661) 381-7700  Fax (661) 381-7799  Toll Free (877) 733-6831  TTY Relay (800) 735-2929 

 
 
 
 
 

 
February 8, 2018 
 
 

Russell Judd 
Kern County Hospital Authority 
1700 Mt. Vernon Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA 93306 
 
 
Subject: 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and 2017 Actuarial Valuation 
 
Dear Russell Judd: 
 
At its December 2017 meeting, the Board of Retirement approved KCERA’s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and its Actuarial Valuation for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2017. I am requesting that both enclosed reports be placed on the 
consent agenda of your next district board meeting. 
 
KCERA’s CAFR provides extensive insight into the retirement association. The report is 
divided into introductory, financial, investment, actuarial and statistical sections. 
Additionally, actuarial valuations include information about future employer and employee 
contribution rates, capital market assumptions, plan experience changes and other plan 
information that your district board might find useful in its planning. 
 
Please contact me with any questions you may have about KCERA’s CAFR or Actuarial 
Valuation. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Dominic D. Brown 
Acting Executive Director 
 
 
Enclosures 

Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association 
Board of Retirement 

 

 

Dustin Dodgin, Chair 
Thad Kennedy (Alt.), Vice-Chair 

David Couch 
Phil Franey  

Juan Gonzalez 
Marko Horvat 
Bob Jefferson 

Jordan Kaufman 
Rick Kratt 

Lauren Skidmore 
John Mattly (Alt.) 

Dominic D. Brown 
Acting Executive Director 



11125 River Run Boulevard  Bakersfield, California 93311  www.kcera.org 
Tel (661) 381-7700  Fax (661) 381-7799  Toll Free (877) 733-6831  TTY Relay (800) 735-2929 

 
 
 
 
 

 
January 23, 2018 

Board of Supervisors 
County of Kern 
1115 Truxtun Avenue 
Bakersfield, California 93301 
 

RECOMMENDED RETIREMENT CONTRIBUTION RATES FOR FY 2018-19 
Fiscal Impact: $235.3 Million; County 

 
Pursuant to Government Code §31453, the Board of Retirement engaged The Segal 
Group, Inc. to perform an actuarial valuation of the retirement plan as of June 30, 2017.  
The actuary determined the contribution rates necessary to fully fund the plan over the 
amortization periods specified in the Board of Retirement’s funding policy. 
 
Employer contribution rates were impacted this year by the following factors: 
 

1. Capital Markets:  KCERA’s market value of assets earned a return of 12.00% 
during the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. However, due to the 
asset-smoothing methodology adopted by the Board of Retirement that 
recognizes investment gains and losses over a series of five-year periods, most 
of the year’s investment gains and the recognition of prior investment gains and 
losses resulted in a 7.02% rate of return on the valuation value of assets as 
compared to the assumed rate of return of 7.5%. This actuarial investment loss 
increased the Plan’s average employer contribution rate by approximately 0.23% 
of payroll.  Attached is the Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017.  
 

2. Experience since Prior Valuation:  For the retirement plan as a whole, the average 
employer contribution rate increased, mainly due to the adoption of new actuarial 
assumptions, lower than expected total payroll growth, the investment loss on a 
valuation value of assets basis, and actual contributions less than expected.  
Additionally, the Actuarial Valuation as of June 30, 2017 reflected a total 
unrecognized investment loss of $74 million as compared to an unrecognized loss 
of $235 million in the June 30, 2016 valuation. This deferred investment loss will 
be recognized in the determination of the actuarial value of assets for funding 
purposes over the next few years.    

 
The combination of the aforementioned factors resulted in a change in the funded 
percentage of the overall plan from 63.4% as of June 30, 2016 to 63.2% as of June 30, 
2017. The Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability increased from $2.13 billion to $2.28 

Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association 
Board of Retirement 

 

 

Dustin Dodgin, Chair 
Thad Kennedy (Alt.), Vice-Chair 

David Couch 
Phil Franey  

Juan Gonzalez 
Marko Horvat 
Bob Jefferson 

Jordan Kaufman 
Rick Kratt 

Lauren Skidmore 
John Mattly (Alt.) 

Dominic D. Brown 
Acting Executive Director 



Retirement Contribution Rates 
January 23, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 

billion due to the adoption of new actuarial assumptions, the investment loss on a 
valuation value of assets basis, and actual contributions less than expected. 
 
The retirement plan provides retirement benefits to nine groups of participants. The 
County General and Safety groups utilize combined employer contribution rates. Special 
District (General) employers in Categories I through VI utilize employer contribution rates 
by individual benefit tier.  
 
The June 30, 2017 Actuarial Valuation includes the recommended employer contribution 
rates by tier as well as the combined employer contribution rates. All employer 
contribution rates, whether combined or by benefit tier, are found in Section 2, Chart 14 
of the Actuarial Valuation. In addition, the recommended employee contribution rates for 
members in KCERA prior to implementation of the Public Employees’ Pension Reform 
Act (the “PEPRA”), as well as members in KCERA under the provisions of the PEPRA, 
are found in Section 4, Appendix A of the Actuarial Valuation. 
 
The Board of Retirement voted to phase-in (over a three-year period) the impact of the 
new actuarial assumptions on the employer Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) 
contribution rates for County General, Courts and Safety as calculated in the June 30, 
2017 Actuarial Valuation. The updated contribution rates can be found in the section 
entitled Contribution Phase-In Letter. 
 
The table below identifies combined contribution rates for the following groups:  
 

Group 

Applicable Period 

07/01/18 to 
06/30/19 

07/01/17 to 
06/30/18 

Difference 
(New vs. Old) 

General County Members - Combined 38.21% 38.29% -.08% 

Safety Members - Combined 67.29% 63.48% 3.81% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Retirement Contribution Rates 
January 23, 2018 
Page 3 
 

 

Therefore, IT IS RECOMMENDED that the Board of Supervisors adopt the employer and 
employee contribution rates for FY 2018-19 as reflected in the Actuarial Valuation 
prepared by KCERA’s actuary, The Segal Group, Inc., and approved by the Board of 
Retirement. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dominic D. Brown 
Acting Executive Director 

 
Attachments 
 
 
cc: County Administrative Office 
 Participating Kern County Special Districts 
 Kern County Superior Court 

Employee Bargaining Units 
 Auditor-Controller-County Clerk 
 Trustees, Board of Retirement (without attachments) 
 Kern County Department Heads (without attachments) 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
February 21, 2018 
 

SUBJECT:   Proposed Amendment No. 10 to Agreement 042‐2015 with Cantu Management Group, 

Inc. 

 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed retroactive Amendment No. 10 to Agreement 
042‐2015 with Cantu Management Group, Inc., for Chief Financial Officer and healthcare financial 
management services.  The proposed amendment revises the methodology for the monthly staffing 
fee for additional staff from hourly rates plus 44% to hourly rates plus a percentage of costs (benefits 
and expenses) not to exceed 44%, and increasing the maximum payable by $7,500,000, from 
$30,038,240 to $37,538,240, effective January 1, 2018. 









 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Arturo Gomez, M.D., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Surgery, Division of Orthopedic Surgery 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary:   
 

Kern Medical recommends your Board approve an agreement with Arturo Gomez, M.D., a contract 
employee, for professional medical services in the Department of Surgery.  Dr. Gomez, who is trained 
as an orthopedic trauma surgeon, has been employed by Kern Medical since 2005, and serves as the 
Chief of the Kern Medical’s very busy Division of Orthopedic Surgery.  The proposed agreement is for a 
term of three years commencing March 16, 2018.  Dr. Gomez is paid based strictly on his productivity.  
The maximum payable under the agreement will not exceed $3,690,000 over the three‐year term. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the agreement with Dr. Gomez for professional 
medical services in the Department of Surgery, Division of Orthopedic Surgery from March 16, 2018 
through March 15, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $3,690,000, and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 







































 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 

February 21, 2018 
 

Subject: Proposed retroactive Statement of Commitment to Graduate Medical Education 

 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary:  
 
Kern Medical Center (KMC) requests your Board retroactively approve a statement of Commitment to 
Graduate Medical Education.  The Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education (ACGME) 
requires a current statement of Board commitment as part of the program and institutional 
requirements imposed by ACGME. 
 
Hospital teaching programs are accredited by the ACGME.  This accreditation means that the overall 
program structure is in conformance with general standards and is the means by which national 
oversight agencies are assured that an excellent teaching environment is maintained.  Each physician 
specialty training program is then accredited by another review agency called Resident Review 
Committee or RRC.  This group ensures that the specific content of the specialty training program 
meets national standards.   
 
KMC has five specialty training programs, including medicine, surgery, obstetrics/gynecology, 
emergency medicine, and psychiatry, and two fellowship programs in Psychiatry.  ACGME accreditation 
and RRC certification are required for the graduates to receive a valid certification of completion for 
physician licensing.  Accreditation and certification also are required for KMC to be eligible to receive 
graduate medical education money from the Medicare/Medicaid programs either through direct 
reimbursement as it relates to patient care or through the disproportionate share hospital program.   
 
The ACGME commitment statement is an expression of interest by your Board in graduate medical 
education.  It is also a statement of commitment that as long as the teaching programs exist at KMC, 
they will be supported through an investment of people, facilities, and appropriate systems, but it does 
not commit your Board to any specific allocation of resources.  This statement does not contain any 
meaningful changes from those that have been signed in the past. 
 
Therefore, IT IS RECOMMENDED that your Board retroactively approve the attached statement of 
Commitment to Graduate Medical Education, effective July 1, 2016, and authorize the Chairman to 
sign. 

 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
KERN MEDICAL CENTER 

COMMITMENT TO GRADUATE MEDICAL EDUCATION 
 
 

KERN MEDICAL CENTER (KMC) is owned and operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority.  The 
Board of Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority is held ultimately accountable for all aspects 
of KMC’s operations and has adopted the stated mission.  The Board of Governors has delegated to the 
Medical Staff the responsibility for the quality of medical care and education at KMC.  KMC, in 
conjunction with its Medical Staff, is committed to excellence in residency education within an 
environment of quality patient care.  The Board, through the KMC Administration, provides resources 
dedicated to maintaining the necessary teaching staff and other financial aspects of sustaining the 
accredited residency programs.  To accomplish this objective, the Kern County Hospital Authority and 
its Sponsoring Institution through KMC are committed to the following: 

 
1. To provide the leadership and financial and educational resources needed to enable the institution 

to achieve substantial compliance with the Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education 
(ACGME) Institutional Requirements and Common Program Requirements, and to enable the 
residency and fellowship programs to achieve substantial compliance with specific program 
requirements. 

 
2. To provide an organized administrative system to oversee all residency and fellowship programs 

through the Graduate Medical Education Committee (GMEC) and the Designated Institution Official 
having authority and responsibility for central administration of the graduate medical education 
programs. 

 
3. To provide an ethical, professional, and scholarly environment in which to conduct graduate 

medical education and to promote scholarly activity.   
 

4. To provide an Institutional Review Board as the administrative structure for oversight of all 
research activities and maintenance of state and federal regulatory compliance. 

 
5. To ensure that each sponsored residency and fellowship program provides an organized 

educational program with guidance and supervision of the residents/fellows, facilitating their 
professional and personal development while ensuring safe and appropriate care for patients. 

 
6. To ensure the regular assessment of the educational quality of ACGME‐accredited programs and to 

ensure that these programs are in substantial compliance with ACGME standards. 



 

 

7. To ensure that when resident/fellow education occurs in a participating institution, that KMC 
continues to have responsibility for the quality of that educational experience and retains authority 
over the activities of residents/fellows, and that appropriate letters of agreements exist between 
KMC and all participating institutions. 

 
8. To maintain KMC’s accreditation by The Joint Commission. 
 
9. To provide and maintain facilities to meet the needs of its educational programs and patient care 

services and to acquire and maintain appropriate medical equipment and technology to support 
the hospital staff. 

 
10. To develop and maintain a hospital staff with the appropriate range of skills and specialties capable 

of providing quality patient care, service, and education. 
 
11. To continuously evaluate and improve patient care from a clinical and service perspective and to 

conduct formal quality assurance programs by reviewing complications and deaths, and to ensure 
that residents/fellows participate in KMC’s performance improvement program and uphold the 
Clinical Learning Environment Review (CLER) program. 

 

12. To ensure a healthy and safe learning and working environment that promotes resident/fellow 
wellbeing.   

 
 
 
By________________________________________ 
  Amir Berjis, M.D. 
  Designated Institutional Official 
 
 
By________________________________________ 
  Russell V. Judd 
  Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
By________________________________________ 
  Russell E. Bigler 
  Chairman, Board of Governors 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
February 21, 2018 
 

SUBJECT:   Change Order No. 1 to Construction Contract with JTS Construction, for the Sagebrush 

NOC IT Hub  

 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 

 

Summary: 
 
Kern Medical entered in to an agreement with JTS Construction. to complete the Sagebrush NOC IT 

Hub project.  The proposed change order no. one (1) totals $3,756 for a new contract amount of 

$721,256. 

This change order will allow the contractor to properly dispose of the unwanted materials that were 

pulled from the electrical trench.  The unwanted materials include large pieces of concrete and asphalt 

paving that cannot be placed back into the trench, as the required compaction would not be achieved 

with the added materials.   

To mitigate potential delays with future contract changes, we are requesting your Board’s approval for 

Kern Medical Center’s Chief Executive Officer, to approve all future change orders in an amount not to 

exceed 10% of the original contract amount, for a total potential contract amount of $789,250. 

 







 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed Agreement with MedHub, LLC, for purchase of E*Value software license and 

maintenance to support graduate medical education.  
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to Sign; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to 

sign Sales Orders totaling an Amount not to Exceed $250,000. 
 

Summary:   
 

Kern Medical requests your Board approve the Proposed Agreement with MedHub, LLC. for the 
purchase of E*Value software license and maintenance. The agreement is for a term of four years with 
a total not to exceed of $63,980. 
 
MedHub, LLC is a company that provides Resident procedure and time tracking software. MedHub, LLC 
has recently acquired our prior vendor in this space, namely E‐Value. 
 
Counsel has been unable to approve the agreement, as to form, due to a limitation of liability up to five 
times the agreement price and the absence of termination without cause language.  
 
 























Russell E. Bigler

Chairman, Board of Governors

February 21, 2018

































Chairman, Board of Governors
February 21, 2018



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Siemens Healthcare Diagnostics, Inc., for the acquisition of 

chemistry analyzers and the purchase of services and reagents 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to Sign 

 

Summary:   
 

Kern Medical requests your Board approve the Proposed Agreement with Siemens Healthcare 

Diagnostics, Inc., for the acquisition of two Vista 500 and one Centaur XP chemistry analyzers and the 

purchase of services for the units and supplies, including reagents.  The agreement is for a term of 

seven years and provides for two years of free service on one Vista unit, five years of free service on 

the other Vista unit, and five years of free service on the Centaur unit.  The agreement includes 

necessary supplies, including reagents, and service for all three units.  The total cost of the 7-year 

agreement will not exceed $2,826,913. 

Counsel is unable to approve the agreement, as to form, due to language in the Addendum to the 

Supplement to Master Products Agreement that limits the ability of Kern Medical to terminate the 

agreement.  

 







Russell E. Bigler
Chairman, Board of Governors
February 21, 2018





Russell E. Bigler
Chairman, Board of Governors
February 21, 2018





Russell E. Bigler
Chairman, Board of Governors
February 21, 2018



















Russell E. Bigler
Chairman, Board of Governors
February 21, 2018



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Hitachi Capital America Corporation for the capital lease with 

option to purchase three chemistry analyzers from Siemens Healthcare Diagnostics Inc. 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to Sign; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to 

Sign Supporting Documentation 
 

Summary:   
 

Kern  Medical  requests  your  Board  approve  the  Proposed  Agreement  with  Hitachi  Capital  America 
Corporation for the capital lease with option to purchase two Vista 500 and one Centaur XP chemistry 
analyzers  from  Siemens  Healthcare  Diagnostics  Inc.    The  proposed  agreement  is  for  a  term  of  60 
months, commencing upon receipt of equipment, in an amount not to exceed $534,332.  
 
Counsel  is unable to approve the agreement, as to form, due to  included late and other fees and no 
warranty and/or indemnification language.   
 





Russell E. Bigler

Chairman, Board of Governors   February 21, 2018



Russell E. Bigler
Chairman, Board of Governors     February 21, 2018





Russell E. Bigler

Russell V. Judd Chief Executive Officer

21 February    18

Russell E. Bigler

Chairman, Board of Governors







 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Charter Communications Operating, LLC on behalf of its 

operating subsidiary Spectrum for the purchase of cable TV, phone, internet, and related services.   
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign; Authorize Chief Executive Officer to 

Sign Service Orders Each Totaling an Amount Not to Exceed $250,000 
 

Summary:   
 

Kern Medical  requests  your  Board  approve  the  Proposed  Agreement with  Charter  Communications 
Operating,  LLC  on  behalf  of  its  operating  subsidiary  Spectrum  for  the  purchase  of  cable  TV,  phone, 
internet, and related services.  The agreement is tied to the Order Term or Service Period that will be 
established in each approved Service Order. Each Service Order will be governed under the terms and 
conditions of the proposed agreement.  
 
Counsel  is unable to approve the agreement, as to form, due to the  limitation of  liability to only the 
previous  six  months  of  Kern  Medical’s  costs,  early  termination  charges,  late  fees,  and  mandatory 
arbitration and waiver of jury trial.   
 





































































 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed Resolution revising the authority of Counsel to contract for expert legal services 
for claims and litigation management 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Adopt Resolution 
 

Summary:   
 

On January 18, 2017, your Board adopted Resolution 2017‐002 authorizing Counsel for the authority to 
contract for expert legal services for claims and litigation management.  The attached proposed 
Resolution revises the authority of Counsel to initiate litigation and take any other necessary legal 
action related to claims denial and revenue recovery to obtain reimbursement for Kern Medical.   
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board retroactively adopt the attached Resolution revising the 
authority of Counsel to contract for expert legal services, effective January 1, 2018.   
 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
 
In the matter of:             Resolution No. __________ 
 
REVISED AUTHORITY OF COUNSEL TO 
CONTRACT FOR EXPERT LEGAL SERVICES 
FOR CLAIMS AND LITIGATION MANAGEMENT 
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA A. ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director __________, 
seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 21st 
day of February, 2018, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been 
delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
                  MONA A. ALLEN  

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
  Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                ____________________________ 
                Mona A. Allen             
 
             

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   
(a) The Kern County Hospital Authority Act (Health & Saf. Code, § 101852 et 

seq.) provides the Kern County Hospital Authority (“Authority”) shall have the power to 
“appoint and employ or otherwise engage a chief executive officer and other officers and 
employees that may be necessary or appropriate, including legal counsel, to establish 
their compensation, provide for their health, retirement, and other employment benefits, 
and to define the power and duties of officers and employees.”  (Emphasis added.)  (Health 
& Saf. Code, § 101855(a)(6).); and 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 (b) On October 6, 2015, the Kern County Board of Supervisors enacted 
Ordinance No. A-356 that adds Chapter 2.170 to Title 2 of the Ordinance Code of the 
County of Kern (“Ordinance”) concerning the creation of the Authority.  The Ordinance 
was effective on November 6, 2015; and 
 

(c) Kern County Ordinance Code section 2.170.080, subsection H states: “As 
provided in a legal services agreement between the County of Kern and the hospital 
authority and until such time as this chapter is amended by the board of supervisors to 
provide otherwise, the office of county counsel shall provide or arrange for legal services 
to the hospital authority, and shall bill the hospital authority accordingly”; and 
 

(d) On December 13, 2016, the Kern County Board of Supervisors enacted 
Ordinance No. A-360 amending sections 2.170.070 and 2.170.080 of Chapter 2.170 of the 
Kern County Ordinance Code to authorize the Authority to provide or arrange for legal 
counsel and related services.  The Ordinance is effective January 20, 2017; and 

 
(e) From time-to-time the Authority requires the assistance of private attorneys 

to advise the Board of Governors, Chief Executive Officer and/or Counsel for the 
Authority concerning settling, compromising and paying claims, and to represent the 
Authority in actual or potential litigation concerning such claims and similar matters; and 

 
(f) It is necessary and appropriate that legal services be performed for the 

Authority with respect to legal matters pertinent to the Authority. 
 
 Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 
 

1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. Counsel for the Authority is hereby authorized to contract for legal services 
with qualified private attorneys, experts, consultants, investigators, and other expert 
services for assistance in the handling of claims and related litigation management, subject 
to the budget authorized for such purchase.  

 
 3. Counsel for the Authority is hereby authorized to initiate litigation and take 
any other necessary legal action related to claims denial and revenue recovery to obtain 
reimbursement for Kern Medical Center. 

 
4. Counsel for the Authority shall report to this Board from time-to-time as is 

appropriate on the employment of such services or individuals.   
 
5. The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective, in force, and operative 

as of the 1st day of January, 2018. 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

6. Resolution No. 2017-002, adopted by the Board of Governors on January 
18, 2017, is hereby repealed and superseded by this Resolution. 

 
7. The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 

the following: 
 

  Kern Medical Center 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  Chief Financial Officer 
  Legal Services Department 
   



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances for Operating Expenses – December 2017 

 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 

Summary:   
 
The following items have budget variances for the month of December 2017:  
 
Gross Operating Revenue: 
Gross operating revenue for the month of December 2017 has a $4.6 million unfavorable variance due to lower 
than  expected  patient  volume  for  the month.    Average  daily  census  for  the month was  132,  compared  to  a 
budget of 135.  The corresponding patient days were 4,105, compared to a budget of 4,176.  
 
Indigent Funding: 
Each  month,  Kern Medical  only  recognizes  ninety‐five  percent  of  the  total  accrued  amount  receivable  from 
indigent  funding.    This  is  a  conservative  approach  that  reserves  five  percent  of  the  total  receivable  indigent 
funding to account for the possibility that some funding could be taken back by the funding sources at a later 
time  due  to  changes  in  calculations  or  in  the  method  that  funds  are  allocated  among  California’s  public 
hospitals. 
 
Other Revenue: 
Other  revenue has an unfavorable budget  variance  for December due  to an  adjustment  for prepaid workers’ 
compensation  claims,  lower  than  average  ER  physicians’  professional  fees,  and  lower  than  average  cafeteria 
revenue. 
  
Registry Nurses: 
Registry nurses expense has an unfavorable budget variance on both a month to date and a year to date basis.  
Kern  Medical  continues  to  rely  on  contracted  nurse  staffing  to  supplement  the  nursing  departments  while 
aggressively trying to recruit full time employed nurses. 
 
Professional Fees: 
Professional  fees  have  an  unfavorable  budget  variance  for  the month  of  December  due  to  one‐time  Cerner 
service fees. 
 
Supplies Expense: 
Supplies  expense  has  an  unfavorable  budget  variance  for  the  month  of  December  due  to  a  large  order  of 
desktop computers for use throughout the hospitals and clinics, office furniture for the Emergency Department, 
and higher than average pharmaceutical expenses.  The expansion of Kern Medical clinics is a main driver of the 
increase in pharmaceutical expenses.  The year‐to‐date variance for supplies expense is reasonably in line with 
plan with only a 2% unfavorable variance. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
 
Purchase Services: 
Purchased  services  are  slightly  under  budget  for  the  month  of  December.    On  a  year‐to‐date  basis,  the 
unfavorable  variance  is  due  to  out‐of‐network  costs.    Patients  that  need  health  care  services  that  are  not 
currently provided by Kern Medical are often referred to other health care providers to perform the services for 
the patients.  These providers then bill Kern Medical for the services provided for our patients.  Medical services 
performed  for  Kern  Medical  patients  by  providers  outside  of  Kern  Medical  are  classified  as  out‐of‐network 
services in the Kern Medical financial statements.  
 
Other Expenses: 
Other expenses are under budget for the month of December.  On a year‐to‐date basis, the unfavorable 
variance is mainly due to many repairs and maintenance projects throughout the hospital and clinics. 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – DECEMBER 2017

FEBRUARY 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Slide 7



Slide 8



Slide 9



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

February 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 
 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 

Summary: 
 
The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3‐month trend Analysis: Volume and Strategic Indicators 
for Kern Medical 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – DECEMBER 2017

FEBRUARY 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Board of Governors

February 21, 2018

Cerner Implementation
Update



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

1

Overview

Alignment Status

Timeline

Governance

SME Selection

Executive Steering



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

2

Alignment Status

• Timeline
• Implementation Methodology
• Discussed "Why"

Commitment Strategy 2/6

Governance Planning 2/8

• Prioritize KPI's
• Selecting a Value Coordinator

Value Planning 2/9

• Scope & Charter

Project Startup 2/14



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

3

Timeline

Fundamentals
& CPA Design

Executive
Alignment

Project Team 
Readiness & 
Foundations

Maintenance
Training

Integration
Testing 1

Workshops 1-8
(5 week sprints)

Integration
Testing 2

Current State 
Review

End User
Training

Go - Live Health 
Check

Activate3 months

February 3/12/2018 3/19/2018 4/2/2018 April 2017 – January 2018 February
2018

3/4/2019 4/15/2019 6 wks. before 
go-live

7/1/2019 8/26/2019

13 months

Event Date

Executive Alignment February

Fundamentals 3/12/2018

Project Team Readiness 3/19/2018

Foundations 3/19/2018

Cerner Patient Accounting (CPA) Design Team Session 3/19/2018

Clinically Driven Revenue Cycle Module 1 3/26/2018

Current State Review 4/2/2018

Data Migration Workshop 4/9/2018

= Gateway



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

4

Governance

Etc…
Patient Safety

Blood Utilization

Infection 
Control

Advisory
Inpatient

PM
Inpatient

SchedulingInpatient
Pharmacy

Physician 
Track

P&T

Advisory
Revenue 

Cycle

Integrated Advisory 
Council (IAC)

Registration

Charge 
Services

Patient 
Accounting

Health 
Information 

Mngmt

Practice 
Mngmt

CORE Clinical 
Reporting

PM
Revenue 

Cycle

Advisory
Lab/Rad

PM
Lab/Rad

Advisory
OCM

PM
OCM

Advisory
Device 

Interface PM
Device 

Interface

Medication 
Process 

POC

Behavioral 
Health

Women’s 
Health Oncology SurgiNet

Supply 
Chain

Critical 
Care

Case 
Mngmt

General 
Lab

Blood Bank

Pathology

Radiology

Outreach

MECExecutive Steering 
Committee

Marketing
& Comm 
(OCM)

Education
& Training

Interface 
FSI

Data 
Migration

Device 
Intergration

Financial 
FSI

Content 360

Executive Team

Project Management 
Organization (PMO)

(IT Analysts)

Ambulatory

Population Health
(PRIME, GPP, WPC)

Inpatient 
Nursing

Ambulatory
Pharmacy

Advisory
Ambulatory

PM
Ambulatory

DTC
PreAdmit
Pre-Op

Correctional Medicine

FirstNet (Emergency 
Medicine)

Ancillary Dietary Facilities

BioMed RT PT

Employee 
Health

1st Aid for 
W/C

2nd Aid for 
W/C Care Coordination



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

5

SME Selection - Inpatient
Inpatient Nursing - 49

Infection Control - 3

Inpatient Pharmacy - 4

Physician Track - 14

Med Process - 2

Behavioral Health - 4

Women's Health - 4

Oncology - 5

SurgiNet - 4

Supply Chain - 9

Critical Care - 7

Case Management - 9

Ancillary - 4

Dietary - 3

Facilities - 1

BioMed - 1

RT - 3

PT - 2

Employee Health - 1

Worker's Comp - 1



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

6

SME Selection - Outpatient
Population Health - 3

Ambulatory - 13

Ambulatory Pharm - 3

DTC, Pre-Op - 1

Correctional Med - 2

FirstNet (ER) - 10

Care Coordination - 3



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

7

SME Selection – Revenue Cycle

Charge Services - 4

Scheduling - 5

Patient Accounting - 10

Registration - 2

Health Information Management - 10

Practice Management - 3

• Positions, User Privileges, Locations

CORE - TBD

Clinical Reporting - 4



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

8

SME Selection – Lab/Rad

Lab - 3

Outreach - 2

Blood Bank - 3

Anatomic Path & Micro - 2

Radiology - 2



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

9

SME Selection – OCM

• Organizational Change Management

OCM - 2

Education & Training - 2



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

10

SME Selection – Device Interface

• Foreign System Interface

Interface FSI - 1

Data Migration - 2

Device Integration - 2

Financial FSI - TBD

Content 360 - 2



BRNDEXP 2.1 0714     © 2014 Cerner Corporation.  All rights reserved.  
This document contains Cerner confidential and/or proprietary information belonging to Cerner Corporation and/or its related affiliates which may not be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means without the express written consent of Cerner

11

Executive Steering

• Exec Team
• Director of Financial Planning
• Project Manager
• Value Coordinator

Membership

• Every 2 weeks beginning 2/22

Meeting Schedule

• Implementation Timeline
• Governance
• SME Selection
• Infrastructure
• Scope Document
• Project Charter
• Implementation Budget
• eMPI
• Centralized vs. Decentralized Scheduling

Agenda



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on February 21, 2018, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and 
improve the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The 
closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health 
and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
February 21, 2018, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: One (1) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not 
limited to, an accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might 
result in litigation against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or 
plaintiffs – 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on February 21, 2018, the premature disclosure of which would create 
a substantial probability of depriving the authority of a substantial economic benefit or 
opportunity.  The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on 
authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) –  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on February 21, 2018, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee organizations: 
Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (Government Code Section 54957.6)  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
February 21, 2018, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Hadie Vanessa Alvarez 
v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-15-101754 
TSC – 
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
February 21, 2018, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service Employees 
International Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment 
Relations Board Case No. LA-CE-1084-M –  
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Government Code Section 54956.9 
 
Based on the advice of Counsel, the Board of Governors is holding a closed session on 
February 21, 2018, to confer with, or receive advice from Counsel regarding pending 
litigation, because discussion in open session concerning this matter would prejudice the 
position of the authority in the litigation. The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Brandy Hernandez aka 
Brandy Desrocher, an individual v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, 
Case No. BCV-17-102820 SDS –  
 

 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on February 21, 2018, to consider: 
 
 
   X    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive 
Officer (Government Code Section 54957) –     
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 




